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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

(Unaudited)
Item 1. Financial Statements
September 3( December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d¢ 2014 2013
ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 30,49¢ $ 33,48t

Securities available for sal
Mortgage-backed securities ( $4,893 and $7,118iavalue pursuant to the fair value option at 8eyiter 30, 2014

and December 31, 2013, respective 696,20¢ 756,15¢
Other securities ($33 ,799 and $30,163 at fairevglursuant to the fair value option at Septembef804 and
December 31, 2013 respective 288,16¢ 261,63«
Loans held for sal 1,15(C 42k
Loans:
Multi-family residentia 1,806,05! 1,712,03!
Commercial real esta 565,97¢ 512,55:
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 577,04: 595,75:
One-to-four family — residentia 191,70: 193,72¢
Cao-operative apartmen 9,77¢ 10,13
Constructior 5,121 4,247
Small Business Administratic 7,53¢ 7,792
Taxi medallion 22,667 13,12
Commercial business and ott 448,92! 373,64:
Net unamortized premiums and unearned loan 10,83¢ 11,17¢
Allowance for loan losses (28,344) (31,776
Net loans 3,617,29I 3,402,40:
Interest and dividends receival 17,23t 17,37(
Bank premises and equipment, 19,65( 20,35¢
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stc 45,77¢ 46,02
Bank owned life insuranc 111,89¢ 109,60¢
Goodwill 16,127 16,127
Other assets 47,98 57,91t
Total assets $ 489198 $ 4,721,50.
LIABILITIES
Due to depositors
Non-interest bearin: $ 213,21¢ $ 197,34
Interes-bearing:
Certificate of deposit accour 1,299,93. 1,120,95!
Savings accouni 251,05 265,001
Money market accoun 300,01: 199,90°
NOW accounts 1,257,85. 1,416,77
Total interes-bearing deposit 3,108,841 3,002,63!
Mortgagors' escrow depos 41,49¢ 32,79¢
Borrowed funds ($ 29,535 and $29,570 at fair valuesuant to the fair value option at Septembe28@4 and
December 31, 2013, respective 915,63 856,82:
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 116,00( 155,30(
Other liabilities 44 ,39¢ 44,067
Total liabilities 4,439,59! 4,288,96!

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4 ¢

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value; 5,000,000 shaut®orized; None issue - -
Common stock ($0.01 par value; 100,000,000 sharém®ezed; 31,530,595 shares issued at Septemh@03@ and

December 31, 2013; 29,646,862 shares and 30,128I252s outstanding at September 30, 2014 and hecedt,

2013, respectively 31t 31t
Additional paic-in capital 205,82¢ 201,90:
Treasury stock, at average cost (1,883 shares and 1,407,343 share

September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplg (32,319 (22,059
Retained earninc 283,00¢ 263,74:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes (4,447) (11,379

Total stockholders' equity 452,39¢ 432,53:

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 4,891,98 $ 4,721,50




The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements

-1-



PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited)
For the three months For the nine months
ended September 3 ended September 3
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d: 2014 2013 2014 2013
Interest and dividend income
Interest and fees on loa $ 42.66¢ $ 4254( $ 127,270 $  128,34:
Interest and dividends on securiti
Interest 6,30¢ 7,13t 20,05 21,26
Dividends 19C 163 574 574
Other interest income 10 13 55 54
Total interest and dividend income 49,17 49,85! 147,95 150,23:
Interest expense
Deposits 7,33¢ 7,77¢ 22,72¢ 24,16(
Other interest expense 9,88¢ 5,09( 19,96( 17,64F
Total interest expense 17,22( 12,86¢ 42,68¢ 41,80¢
Net interest income 31,95% 36,98t 105,27: 108,42"
(Benefit) provision for loan losses (61€) 3,43¢ (2,829) 12,93t
Net interest income after provision for loan losse 32,57¢ 33,55( 108,10: 95,49:
Non-interest income (loss
Otherthar-temporary impairment ("OTTI") char - (1,622) - (2,50¢)
Less: Non-credit portion of OTTI charge recorde®ither Comprehensive Income
before taxes - 70€ - 1,08¢
Net OTTI charge recognized in earnir - (91€) - (1,419
Banking services fee incon 74¢€ 344 2,32¢ 2,612
Net gain from sale of securiti 5,21¢ 96 5,21¢ 2,972
Net gain on sale of loar - 1 - 144
Net loss from fair value adjustmer (474) (190 (1,520 (621)
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock divide 462 39¢ 1,44¢ 1,21«
Bank owned life insuranc 762 852 2,29: 2,51¢
Other income 40¢& 35¢ 1,062 1,071
Total non-interest income 7,12° 94t 10,81¢ 8,49:
Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee bene 12,16¢ 10,71¢ 36,68¢ 33,91(
Occupancy and equipme 2,007 1,961 5,961 5,671
Professional service 1,601 1,247 4,33¢ 4,38(
FDIC deposit insuranc 771 65¢ 2,141 2,43t
Data processin 1,021 1,04z 3,131 3,18¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 69C 737 2,12: 2,23¢
Other real estate owned/foreclosure expe 372 417 907 1,52¢
Other operating expenses 2,811 2,27: 8,86¢ 8,32¢
Total non-interest expense 21,43; 19,05( 64,15« 61,68:
Income before income taxe 18,26. 15,44t 54,767 42,30:
Provision for income taxes
Federal 5,24( 4,59: 15,51 12,717
State and local 1,82( 1,431 6,07¢ 3,781
Total taxes 7,06( 6,02/ 21,58t 16,49¢
Net income $ 11,20 $ 9,421 $ 33,18: $ 25,80«
Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.3t $ 03z $ 111 $ 0.8¢€
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 03t % 03z % 111 $ 0.8¢
Dividends per common sha $ 0.1t % 0.1z % 0.4t % 0.3¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
For the three months ended  For the nine months ended
September 3( September 3(

(Dollars in thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Comprehensive Income

Net income $ 11,20 $ 9,421 $ 33,18. $ 25,80¢

Amortization of actuarial loss¢ 98 174 25¢ 522

Amortization of prior service credi (6) (7 (16 (29

OTTI charges included in incon - 51€ - 79¢

Reclassification adjustment for gains includedicoime (2,97%) (54) (2,97%) (1,679

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net (2,20€) (1,729 9,661 (19,94))
Comprehensive income $ 6,10¢ $ 8,321 § 40,11 $ 5,48¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheassolidated financial statements .
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

For the nine months ended

September 3(
(Dollars in thousands 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 33,18: $ 25,80«
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activitie:
(Benefit) provision for loan losse (2,829 12,93t
Depreciation and amortization of bank premisesemqmdpmen: 2,12z 2,23¢
Net gain on sale of loar - (144)
Net gain on sale of securiti (5,21€) (2,972
Amortization of premium, net of accretion of disod 5,33¢ 5,744
Net loss from fair value adjustmer 1,52( 621
OTTI charge recognized in earnin - 1,41¢
Income from bank owned life insuran (2,299 (2,519
Stoclk-based compensation expel 3,597 2,91¢
Deferred compensatic (2,245 (410)
Amortization of core deposit intangibl - 351
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme (757) (339
Deferred income tax provisic 2,55¢ 14¢
Decrease in prepaid FDIC assessn - 3,287
Increase in other liabilitie 5,56: 8,26¢
Decrease (increase) in other assets 1,63¢ (782)
Net cash provided by operating activities 42,167 56,56
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of bank premises and equipr (1,41¢ (469)
Net (redemption) purchase of Federal Home Loan BdiMew York share 24¢ (3,666
Purchases of securities available for ¢ (132,18 (380,326
Proceeds from sales and calls of securities avaifab sale 102,32¢ 112,88t
Proceeds from maturities and prepayments of sézsidiailable for sal 77,64: 123,74¢
Net originations of loan (199,61Y (201,62
Purchases of loar (23,77) (452)
Proceeds from sale of real estate ow 2,292 3,40¢
Proceeds from sale of delinquent loans 7,332 25,21
Net cash used in investing activities (167,15) (321,28))
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in ncinterest bearing depos 15,87¢ 24,87:
Net increase in intere-bearing deposit 105,50: 189,97:
Net increase in mortgagors' escrow depc 8,69¢ 8,50¢
Net proceeds (repayments) from s-term borrowed fund 25,00( (43,000
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 150,00( 199, 34¢
Repayment of lor-term borrowings (157,08)) (89,91)
Purchases of treasury stc (13,809 (14,06
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme 757 33¢
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exeofistock option 512 31z
Cash dividends paid (13,467) (11,747
Net cash provided by financing activities 121,99¢ 264,62:
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (2,98¢) 97
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 33,48t 40,42¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 30,49¢ $ 40,32¢
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURE
Interest paic $ 4237 $ 40,94+
Income taxes pai 18,18« 11,99¢
Taxes paid if excess tax benefits were not tax chifnle 18,94 12,33¢
Non-cash activities
Loans transferred to other real estate ow 5,74¢ 4.54:
Loans provided for the sale of other real estatean 712 3,011
Loans held for investment transferred to loans faidale 1,15(C 13,00¢

Loans held for sale transferred to loans heldreestmen - 2,21¢



The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholderg&quity

(Unaudited)
For the nine months ended
September 3(
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d: 2014 2013
Common Stock
Balance, beginning of peric $ 31t $ 31t
No activity - -
Balance, end of period $ 31t $ 31E
Additional Paid-In Capital
Balance, beginning of peric $ 201,90: $ 198,31
Award of common shares released from Employee Behefst (133,446 and 141,059 common shares fonihe
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, resglgt 2,02¢ 1,60¢
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawtrds (7,300 and 120,014 common shares for tteemonths
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respecti 30 161
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (105,98586,025 common shares for the nine months endpte®ber 3C
2014 and 2013, respective 31C 84¢
Stocl-based compensation activity, 1 801 (284)
Stock-based income tax benefit 757 33¢
Balance, end of period $ 20582¢ $ 200,98
Treasury Stock
Balance, beginning of peric $ (22,05) $ (10,257
Purchases of shares outstanding (661,470 and 86dymon shares for the nine months ended Septe3tb2014,
and 2013, respectivel (12,660 (13,157
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawtrds (198,536 and 176,656 common shares faritleemonths
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respecti 3,131 2,33¢
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (105,985380,195 common shares for the nine months endpte®ber 3C
2014 and 2013, respective 1,697 4,262
Purchases of shares to fund options exercised3B&idd 233,933 common shares for the nine montsden
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectiv (1,290 (4,07%)
Repurchase of shares to satisfy tax obligation®¢@band 57,411 common shares for the nine momitsceSeptemb
30, 2014 and 2013, respective (1,245 (912)
Balance, end of period $ (32,319 $ (21,790
Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of peric $ 263,740 $  241,85¢
Net income 33,18: 25,80+
Cash dividends declared and paid on common sh&@e$5 and $0.39 per common share for the nine rsaibed
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectiv (13,46)) (11,747
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (8,0006&t70 common shares for the nine months endec®épt 30,
2014 and 2013, respective (50) (12€)
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawtrds (191,236 and 56,642 common shares foritigenmonths
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respecti (40E) (100)
Balance, end of period $ 283,000 $ 255,68
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss
Balance, beginning of peric $  (11,37H $ 12,137
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on sessidiiailable for sale, net of taxes of approxinyai&¥,484) and
$15,482 for the nine months ended September 3@ 20d 2013, respective 9,667 (19,94
Amortization of actuarial losses, net of taxesmr@ximately ($266) and ($405) for the nine morghded Septembe
30, 2014 and 2013, respectivi 25¢ 522
Amortization of prior service credits, net of taxefsapproximately $18 and $15 for the nine montidesl September

30, 2014 and 2013, respectivi (16) (29
OTTI charges included in income, net of taxes gfrapimately ($620) for the nine months ended Septm30, 201! - 79¢
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedéhincome, net of tax of approximately $2,238 ah®$9 for the nin
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, resplgc (2,97¢) (1,679
Balance, end of period (4,449 $ (8,187

Total Stockholders' Equity 452,39« $ 427,01

»

&

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements .
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentatior

The primary business of Flushing Financial Corgoratithe “Holding Company”), a Delaware corporatiaa the operation of its whollgwnec
subsidiary, Flushing Bank (the “Bank”).

The unaudited consolidated financial statementseguted in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (“Qerdy Report”)include the collective results of 1
Holding Company and its direct and indirect whadlyned subsidiaries, including the Bank, Flushingféred Funding Corporation, Flushing Ser
Corporation, and FSB Properties Inc., which aréectively herein referred to as “we,” “us,” “ourhd the “Company.”

The Holding Company also owns Flushing Financigbi@ Trust 1l, Flushing Financial Capital Trust,land Flushing Financial Capital Trust IV (
“Trusts”™), which are special purpose business $tuShe Trusts are not included in the Compargonsolidated financial statements as the Con
would not absorb the losses of the Trusts if asgds were to occur.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finan¢&kments are prepared in accordance with accauptinciples generally accepted in the Un
States of America (“GAAP"and general practices within the banking indusirige information furnished in these interim statetaereflects a
adjustments which are, in the opinion of managemestessary for a fair statement of the resultssémh presented periods of the Company.
adjustments are of a normal recurring nature, sngiserwise disclosed in this Quarterly Report.iAlercompany balances and transactions have
eliminated in consolidation. The results of openasi in the interim statements are not necessandlicative of the results that may be expectedHe
full year.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finantééments have been prepared in conformity withrieuctions to Quarterly Report on Form QO-
and Article 10, Rule 10-01 of RegulationXSfor interim financial statements. Accordingly,r@@n information and footnote disclosures norrr
included in financial statements prepared in acaocd with GAAP have been condensed or omitted patgo the rules and regulations of the Secu
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The unaudited alisteted interim financial information should bedein conjunction with the ComparsyAnnua
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembefB13.

2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymvith GAAP requires management to make estimata$ assumptions that affect the repc
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclos@imntingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements, and reported amountswau
and expenses during the reporting period. Estimdiat are particularly susceptible to change in tlear term are used in connection with
determination of the allowance for loan losses (LAL), the evaluation of goodwill for impairment, the avation of the need for a valuation allowa
of the Company’s deferred tax assets, the evaluafoother-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI8n securities and the valuation of certain finak
instruments. The current economic environment haseased the degree of uncertainty inherent inethesterial estimates. Actual results could d
from these estimates.

3. Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share are computed in accordanceA8 Topic 260°‘Earnings Per Share."Basic earnings per common share is computed bdidiy
net income available to common shareholders byota¢ weighted average number of common sharesamdinig, which includes unvested participa
securities. Unvested share-based payment awardedhtain norforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equigals (whether paid or unpaid)
participating securities and as such are includetié calculation of earnings per share. The Coryigamvested restricted stock and restricted stod
awards are considered participating securitiesréfbee, weighted average common shares outstandied for computing basic earnings per com
share includes common shares outstanding plus tedresstricted stock and restricted stock unit aaafhe computation of diluted earnings per
includes the additional dilutive effect of stocktiops outstanding and other common stock equivaldating the period. Common stock equivalents
are antidilutive are not included in the computation ofutld earnings per common share. The numeratorafoulating basic and diluted earnings
common share is net income available to commoneslodders. The shares held in the CompsuiBmployee Benefit Trust are not included in st
outstanding for purposes of calculating earningscpenmon share.




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
Earnings per common share have been computed badéaé following:

For the three months ended  For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(
2014 2013 2014 2013
(In thousands, except per share de

Net income, as reporte $ 11,201 $ 9,421 $ 33,18: $ 25,80/
Divided by:

Weighted average common shares outstan 29,77 29,77: 29,931 30,14

Weighted average common stock equivalents 24 32 31 25

Total weighted average common shares outstandidig@mmon stock equivaler 29,79¢ 29,80¢ 29,96¢ 30,16¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 03t $ 03z $ 111 % 0.8¢
Diluted earnings per common shi® $ 03¢ $ 03z $ 111 $ 0.8¢€
Dividend payout ratic 39.5% 40.6% 40.5% 45.2%

(1) For the three months ended September 30, 2014 @h8| ®ptions to purchase 61,000 shares at an averegycise price of $19.37 and 111,
shares at an average exercise price of $19.56e¢tgply, were not included in the computation dfigd earnings per common share as they
anti-dilutive. For the nine months ended Septen3@r2014, there were no options which were consilantidilutive. For the nine months enc
September 30, 2013, options to purchase 320,20@sl an average exercise price of $18.33 weréenchtded in the computation of dilut
earnings per common share as they weredilutive.

4. Debt and Equity Securities

The Companys investments in equity securities that have rgatiterminable fair values and all investmentseahtdsecurities are classified in one of
following three categories and accounted for adogiy: (1) trading securities, (2) securities aghlk for sale and (3) securities held-to-maturity.

The Company did not hold any trading securitiesegurities held-tepaturity during the three and nine months endedefeper 30, 2014 and 20.
Securities available for sale are recorded at/aine.

The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at Septemtier2d14:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands
Corporate $ 100,61: $ 101,49 $ 1,507 $ 62€
Municipals 143,45( 146,08t 2,81¢ 183
Mutual funds 26,97¢ 26,97¢ - -
Other 16,38¢ 13,61¢ - 2,77(C
Total other securities 287,42 288,16¢ 4,32¢ 3,581
REMIC and CMC 497,45’ 495,37" 5,70¢ 7,781
GNMA 14,617 14,83¢ 43C 20¢€
FNMA 173,04 170,94 1,39¢ 3,50«
FHLMC 15,03! 15,05: 142 122
Total mortgage-backed securities 700,15 696,20 7,677 11,62:
Total securities available for sale $ 98757« $ 98437 $ 12,00 $ 15,20:
-7-



PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table alslede three private issue collateralized moregagligations (“CMOs"}hat are collateralized |
commercial real estate mortgages with amortizetlaod market values totaling $12.4 million and $lillion, respectively, at September 30, 2014.

The following table shows the Compasydvailable for sale securities with gross unredlitbsses and their fair value aggregated by categal lengt
of time the individual securities had been in atowrous unrealized loss position at September 8042

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 39,37 $ 626 $ 9,52¢ $ 47z $ 29,84: $ 15€
Municipals 32,35¢ 183 20,74¢ 34 11,60¢ 14¢
Other 6,797 2,77( - - 6,797 2,77(
Total other securities 78,52’ 3,581 30,27¢ 50¢€ 48,24¢ 3,07t
REMIC and CMC 266,92: 7,781 114,94¢ 1,37¢ 151,97: 6,40¢
GNMA 8,581 20€& - - 8,581 20¢&
FNMA 114,41: 3,504 19,80¢ 134 94,60¢ 3,37(
FHLMC 11,90¢ 122 4,987 45 6,91¢ 77
Total mortgage-backed securities 401,81¢ 11,62: 139,74: 1,55¢ 262,07 10,06:
Total securities available for sale $ 480,33¢ $ 15,20: $ 170,01¢ $ 2,06¢ $ 310,320 $ 13,13¢

OTTI losses on impaired securities must be fullsogmnized in earnings if an investor has the intersell the debt security or if it is more likelyan no
that the investor will be required to sell the dedturity before recovery of its amortized costwdwer, even if an investor does not expect toasekb
security, the investor must evaluate the expectsth lows to be received and determine if a cledi has occurred. In the event that a credit has
occurred, only the amount of impairment associatét the credit loss is recognized in earningsha Consolidated Statements of Income. Amc
relating to factors other than credit losses acended in accumulated other comprehensive inco®®Cl”) within Stockholders’ Equity.

The Company reviewed each investment that had eselired loss at September 30, 2014. An unrealiaesl exists when the current fair value o
investment is less than its amortized cost basisedélized losses on available for sale securitieg,are deemed to be temporary, are recorded @4
net of tax. Unrealized losses that are considereuktother-thamemporary are split between credit related and reglicrelated impairments, with t
credit related impairment being recorded as a eagginst earnings and the noncredit related immgait being recorded in AOCI, net of tax.

The Company evaluates its pooled trust preferremiriges, included in the table above under “OtherSing an impairment model through
independent third party, which includes evaluating financial condition of each counterparty. Foigke issuer trust preferred securities, the Corg
evaluates the issuerfinancial condition. When an OTTI is identifigle portion of the impairment that is credit rethtéor trust preferred securities
determined by management by using a discountedftaghmodel from an independent third party, wikte tdifference between the present value ¢
projected cash flows and the amortized cost bdgstseosecurity recorded as a credit related losénag earnings.

Corporate:

The unrealized losses in Corporate securities pteG®er 30, 2014 consist of losses on five Corposaturities. The unrealized losses were caus
movements in interest rates. It is not anticipdteat these securities would be settled at a pheéis less than the amortized cost of the Compgany’
investment. Each of these securities is perfornsiogording to its terms and, in the opinion of mamagnt, will continue to perform according ta
terms. The Company does not have the intent tatsedle securities and it is more likely than net@ompany will not be required to sell the seces
before recovery of the securities’ amortized casdi®s This conclusion is based upon considerinditiapanys cash and working capital requirems
and contractual and regulatory obligations, nona/th the Company believes would cause the satheokecurities. Therefore, the Company dic
consider these investments to be other-than-terriporapaired at September 30, 2014.

-8-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Municipal Securities:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities git&aber 30, 2014, consist of losses on eight mpalicecurities. The unrealized losses were caug
movements in interest rates. It is not anticipdteat these securities would be settled at a phieg i less than the amortized cost of the Company’
investment. Each of these securities is perforngiogording to its terms and, in the opinion of mamagnt, will continue to perform according to
terms. The Company does not have the intent tatsedle securities and it is more likely than net@ompany will not be required to sell the seces
before recovery of the securities amortized costsh& his conclusion is based upon consideringdbmpany$ cash and working capital requirem
and contractual and regulatory obligations, none/tath the Company believes would cause the satbeobecurities. Therefore, the Company dic
consider these investments to be other-than-temipoirapaired at September 30, 2014.

Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at Seper80, 2014, consist of losses on one single iissust preferred security and two pooled t
preferred securities. The unrealized losses oretlesurities were caused by market interest vityatd significant widening of credit spreads as
markets for these securities and illiquidity anccenmainty in the financial markets. These secigitiee currently rated below investment grade.
pooled trust preferred securities do not have tai that is subordinate to the classes the Cognpams. The Compang’management evaluates
pooled trust preferred securities using an impaitmeodel, through an independent third party, itkedpplied to debt securities. In estimating C
losses, management considers: (1) the length &f éind the extent to which the fair value has bess than amortized cost; (2) the current intesds
environment; (3) the financial condition and n&am prospects of the issuer, if applicable; andttié intent and ability of the Company to retas
investment in the security for a period of timefgignt to allow for any anticipated recovery inirfgalue. Additionally, management reviews
financial condition of each individual issuer withthe pooled trust preferred securities. All of tssuers of the underlying collateral of the podiec
preferred securities we reviewed are banks.

For each bank, our review included the followingfpenance items of the banks:
Ratio of tangible equity to assets
Tier 1 Risk Weighted Capital
Net interest margin
Efficiency ratio for most recent two quarters
Return on average assets for most recent two gsarte
Texas Ratio (ratio of non-performing assets pleespast due over 90 days divided by tangibletgglis the reserve for loan losses)
Credit ratings (where applicable)
Capital issuances within the past year (where aable)
Ability to complete Federal Deposit Insurance Cogpion (“FDIC”) assisted acquisitions (where apalite)

Based on the review of the above factors, we caledluhat:
All of the performing issuers in our pools are wedpitalized banks, and do not appear likely talbsed by their regulators.
All of the performing issuers in our pools will dorue as a going concern and will not default agirteecurities.

In order to estimate potential future defaults alederrals, we segregated the performing underlyssgers by their Texas Ratio. We then revie
performing issuers with Texas Ratios in excess08%65The Texas Ratio is a key indicator of the lreaftthe institution and the likelihood of failu
This ratio compares the problem assets of thetiigtn to the institutiors available capital and reserves to absorb lossgsate likely to occur in the
assets. No issuer in our pooled trust preferredrigs had a Texas Ratio in excess of 50%. Weloded that issuers with a Texas Ratio below 509
considered healthy, and there was minimal risked&dlt. We assigned a zero percent default ratbase issuers. Our analysis also assumed thats
currently deferring would default with no recoveayd issuers that have defaulted will have no regov
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We had an independent third party prepare a digedurash flow analysis for each of these poolest tpueferred securities based on the assum
discussed above. Other significant assumptions :wéjeone issuer totaling $15.0 million will prepay the third quarter of 2015; (2) three issi
totaling $31.8 million will prepay in the third quar of 2015; (3) senior classes will not call thebt on their portions; and (4) use of the forwavddor
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) curve. The casbvit were discounted at the effective rate for escturity.

The Company also owns a single issue securityishearried under the fair value option, where theealized losses are included in the Consolic
Statements of Income — Net gain (loss) from falugadjustments.

It is not anticipated at this time that the oneglnissuer trust preferred security and the twolgebdrust preferred securities would be settled ptice
that is less than the amortized cost of the Comamyvestment. Each of these securities is perfagnaiccording to its terms and, in the opiniol
management and based on the review performed &i8ber 30, 2014, will continue to perform accordiogts terms. The Company does not hawvt
intent to sell these securities and it is morelyiklhan not the Company will not be required tol $ké securities before recovery of the securities’
amortized cost basis. This conclusion is based womsidering the Compars/'cash and working capital requirements and comizgd@nd regulatol
obligations, none of which the Company believes id@mause the sale of the securities. Therefore Cinmpany did not consider the one single is
trust preferred security and the two pooled trusferred securities to be other-than-temporarilpaired at September 30, 2014.

At September 30, 2014, including the three trusfegred issues discussed above, the Company haldrést preferred issues which had a current t
rating of at least one rating below investment gradne of those issues is carried under the fdirevaption and therefore, changes in fair value
included in the Consolidated Statement of InconNet-gain (loss) from fair value adjustments.

The following table details the remaining threestrpreferred issues that were evaluated to deterifithey were other-thatemporarily impaired
September 30, 2014. The class the Company ownsoiieg trust preferred securities does not haveeangss subordination.

Deferrals/Defaults

Cumulative Actual as a Expected
Credit Percentage Percentage Current
Issuer Performing Amortized Fair Related of Original  of Performing Lowest
Type Class Banks Cost Value OTTI Security Collateral Rating
(Dollars in thousands

Single issue n/a 1 $ 30C $ 29 % - None None BB-
Pooled issue B1 15 5,617 3,20 2,38: 22.5% 0.C% C
Pooled issuer C1 16 3,64¢ 3,30( 1,35¢ 17.% 0.C% C

Total $ 9,56z $ 6,79 $ 3,73¢

REMIC and CMO:

The unrealized losses in Real Estate Mortgage tmerg Conduit (“REMIC”)and CMO securities at September 30, 2014 consi$8a$sues from tt
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC"§ isues from the Federal National Mortgage Assiocia“FNMA”) and seven issues fr¢
Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”).

The unrealized losses on the REMIC and CMO seesriisued by FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA were caused bywements in interest rates. It is
anticipated that these securities would be setted price that is less than the amortized cosh@fCompanys investment. Each of these securitie
performing according to its terms, and, in the apinof management, will continue to perform accogdto its terms. The Company does not hav
intent to sell these securities and it is morelyikhan not the Company will not be required tol $ké securities before recovery of the securities’
amortized cost basis. This conclusion is based womsidering the Comparg/cash and working capital requirements, and coitah and regulato
obligations, none of which the Company believes ld@ause the sale of the securities. ThereforeCmapany did not consider these investments
other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30420
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GNMA:

The unrealized losses in GNMA securities at SeptedB, 2014 consist of losses on one security. Urrealized losses were caused by moveme
interest rates. It is not anticipated that thisusiég would be settled at a price that is less tHam amortized cost of the Compasyhvestment. Th
security is performing according to its terms aindhe opinion of management, will continue to pemni according to its terms. The Company doe:
have the intent to sell this security and it is enbkely than not the Company will not be requitedsell the security before recovery of the segigit
amortized cost basis. This conclusion is based womsidering the Compars/'cash and working capital requirements and cowiaga@nd regulatol
obligations, none of which the Company believes ld@ause the sale of the security. Therefore, the@any did not consider this security to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2014.

FNMA:

The unrealized losses in FNMA securities at Seper30, 2014 consist of losses on 15 securities.uFealized losses were caused by moveme
interest rates. It is not anticipated that theseisges would be settled at a price that is |ésstthe amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each
these securities is performing according to iteneeend, in the opinion of management, will continagerform according to its terms. The Comg
does not have the intent to sell these securitidsitas more likely than not the Company will ria# required to sell the securities before recooéne
securities’ amortized cost basis. This conclus®ibased upon considering the Compamash and working capital requirements and cot@hanc
regulatory obligations, none of which the Compamfidves will cause the sale of the securities. &foge, the Company did not consider tt
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaireSeptember 30, 2014.

FHMLC:

The unrealized losses in FHMLC securities at SeptB80, 2014 consist of losses on two securitibs. Uhrealized losses were caused by moveme
interest rates. It is not anticipated that theseisges would be settled at a price that is Iésstthe amortized cost of the Companiyivestment. Each
these securities are performing according to itsiseand, in the opinion of management, will condinia perform according to its terms. The Comy
does not have the intent to sell these securitidstds more likely than not that the Company widlt be required to sell the securities before veppol
the securities’ amortized cost basis. This conoluss based upon considering the Comparmgsh and working capital requirements and comi@hanc
regulatoryobligations, none of which the Company believes iaause the sale of the securities. Therefore,Gbmpany did not consider the
securities to be other-than-temporarily impaire@eptember 30, 2014.

The following table details gross unrealized lossErded in AOCI and the ending credit loss amamtwo pooled trust preferred securities, &
September 30, 2014, for which the Company has decba credit related OTTI charge in the Consolil&ttements of Income:

Gross Unrealize

Amortized Losses Record¢ Ending Credi
(in thousands Cost Fair Value In AOCI Loss Amoun
Trust preferred securitie $ 9,26z $ 6,50C $ 2,76z $ 3,73¢
Total $ 9,26z $ 6,50C $ 2,76z $ 3,73¢
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The following table represents the activity relatedhe credit loss component recognized in eamorgdebt securities held by the Company for wh
portion of OTTI was recognized in AOCI for the el indicated:

For the three months ended  For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(
2014 2013 2014 2013
(In thousands
Beginning balanc $ 3,73t $ 6,19: $ 3,73t $ 6,17¢
Recognition of actual loss: - (18€) - (674)
OTTI charges due to credit loss recorded in eas - 91¢€ - 1,41¢
Securities sold during the peri - - - -
Securities where there is an intent to sell or iregqoent to sell - - - -
Ending balance $ 3,73¢  $ 6,92 $ 3,73¢  $ 6,92°

The following table details the amortized cost astdmated fair value of the Compasysecurities classified as available for sale ateSeber 30, 201
by contractual maturity. Expected maturities willfet from contractual maturities because borrowmigy have the right to call or prepay obligati
with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands

Due in one year or let $ 46,317 $ 46,36¢
Due after one year through five ye. 35,65¢ 37,09¢
Due after five years through ten ye 68,74 68,24¢
Due after ten years 136,70 136,46(

Total other securitie 287,42; 288,16¢
Mortgage-backed securities 700,15: 696,20¢

Total securities available for sale $ 987,57t $ 984,37

The following table represents the gross gainsgands losses realized from the sale of securitiadable for sale for the periods indicated:

For the three months ended  For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(
2014 2013 2014 2013
(In thousands
Gross gains from the sale of securi $ 5247 $ 96 $ 5247 $ 3,31¢
Gross losses from the sale of securi (32 - (32 (3417)
Net gains from the sale of securit $ 521¢ $ % $ 521¢ $ 2,972
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The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at December3il 3:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands

Corporate $ 100,36: $ 101,71: $ 2,31 $ 967
Municipals 127,96° 123,42: 93 4,637
Mutual funds 21,56¢ 21,56¢ - -
Other 18,16( 14,93¢ - 3,22¢
Total other securities 268,05¢ 261,63¢ 2,40¢ 8,82¢
REMIC and CMC 494,98 489,67( 6,51¢ 11,83(
GNMA 38,97« 40,87« 2,32¢ 42F
FNMA 217,61" 212,32: 2,237 7,52¢
FHLMC 13,297 13,29( 22€ 232
Total mortgage-backed securities 764,87( 756,15¢ 11,30( 20,01«
Total securities available for sale $ 1,032,992 $ 1,017,790 $ 13,70¢ $ 28,84

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table alislede three private issue collateralized morggagligations (“CMQO”)that are collateralized |
commercial real estate mortgages with an amortpstland market value of $13.9 million at Decen81er2013.

The following table shows the Compasyvailable for sale securities with gross unredlitbsses and their fair value, aggregated by oayeand lengt
of time that individual securities had been in atoaious unrealized loss position, at Decembe2813.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or more
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 39,03: $ 967 $ 39,03: $ 967 $ - $ -
Municipals 100,87 4,637 95,95¢ 4,187 4,917 45C
Other 6,331 3,22¢ - - 6,331 3,22¢
Total other securities 146,24! 8,82¢ 134,99: 5,15¢ 11,25¢ 3,67
REMIC and CMC 298,16" 11,83( 279,74: 10,65( 18,42: 1,18(¢
GNMA 9,21z 42F 9,21z 42F - -
FNMA 139,99¢ 7,52¢ 131,24 6,65¢ 8,751 872
FHLMC 7,47¢ 232 7,47¢ 232 - -
Total mortgage-backed securities 454 85! 20,01« 427,68: 17,96: 27,17: 2,052
Total securities available for sale $ 601,100 $ 28,841 $ 562,67¢ $ 23,11¢ $ 38,427 $ 5,721

5. Loans

Loans are reported at their principal outstandiatafice net of any unearned income, chaf@e-deferred loan fees and costs on originatatidaan
unamortized premiums or discounts on purchasedsldaterest on loans is recognized on the accrasisbThe accrual of income on loans is gene
discontinued when certain factors, such as contshatelinquency of 90 days or more, indicate reabndoubt as to the timely collectability of s
income. Uncollected interest previously recognipadnon-accrual loans is reversed from interestrime@t the time the loan is placed on ramcrua
status. A noraccrual loan can be returned to accrual status veoetractual delinquency returns to less than 9 dielinquent. Subsequent ¢
payments received on n@tcrual loans that do not bring the loan to leas 0 days delinquent are recorded on a cash Isagisequent cash payme
can also be applied first as a reduction of prialcimtil all principal is recovered and then suhsayly to interest, if in managemesntpinion, it i
evident that recovery of all principal due is uelikto occur. Loan fees and certain loan origimatiosts are deferred. Net loan origination cost
premiums or discounts on loans purchased are amadriinto interest income over the contractual bfethe loans using the levgleld methoc
Prepayment penalties received on loans which péyliprior to their scheduled maturity are incladi@ interest income in the period they are co#idct
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The Company maintains an allowance for loan lossem amount, which, in managemsrtidgment, is adequate to absorb probable estiasse
inherent in the loan portfolio. Managemenjtidgment in determining the adequacy of the aloee is based on evaluations of the collectalnfitpans
This evaluation is inherently subjective, as ituiegs estimates that are susceptible to significavisions as more information becomes availabke
allowance is established through a provision (b&nfefr loan losses based on managenseataluation of the risk inherent in the varioumponents ¢
the loan portfolio and other factors, includingtbigal loan loss experience (which is updated guly), current economic conditions, delinquency
non-accrual trends, classified loan levels, riskhia portfolio and volumes and trends in loan typesent trends in charggfs, changes in underwritil
standards, experience, ability and depth of the @om's lenders, collection policies and experience ringkeloan review function and other extel
factors. Additionally, the Company segregated oank into two portfolios based on year of origioatiOne portfolio was reviewed for loans origini
after December 31, 2009 and a second portfolioldans originated prior to January 1, 2010. Our sleni to segregate the portfolio based
origination dates was based on changes made inrmarwriting standards during 2009. By the end@J2, all loans were being underwritten base
revised and tightened underwriting standards. Laaiginated prior to 2010 have a higher delinqueraty and loss history. Each of the years ir
portfolio for loans originated prior to 2010 havesieilar delinquency rate. The determination of #meount of the allowance for loan losses incli
estimates that are susceptible to significant ceardye to changes in appraisal values of collateedional and local economic conditions and ¢
factors. We review our loan portfolio by separaategories with similar risk and collateral charastes. Impaired loans are segregated and revi
separately. All non-accrual loans are classifiethgzmired loans. The Company’s Board of Direct@gaews and approves managemegm@valuation ¢
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses queaterly basis.

The allowance for loan losses is established thralgrges to earnings in the form of a provisicengfit) for loan losses. Increases and decreagbs
allowance other than chargdfs and recoveries are included in the provisioengfit) for loan losses. When a loan or a portiba loan is determined
be uncollectible, the portion deemed uncollectibleharged against the allowance, and subsequemtages, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The Company recognizes a loan as performing when the borrower has demonstrated miability to bring the loan current, or due to o
circumstances which, in managemsntipinion, indicate the borrower will be unablebiong the loan current within a reasonable timd. 18&ns
classified as non-performing, which includes a#irle past due 90 days or more, are classified ascoal unless there is, in our opinion, compe
evidence the borrower will bring the loan curremttie immediate future. Appraisals are obtainedandpdated internal evaluations are prepare
soon as practical, and before the loan becomesa96 delinquent. The loan balances of collateraleddpnt impaired loans are compared tc
propertys updated fair value. The Company considers fdirevaf collateral dependent loans to be 85% ofahygraised or internally estimated valu
the property. The balance which exceeds fair velggenerally charged-off.

A loan is considered impaired when, based uporeatiinformation, the Company believes it is prokabht it will be unable to collect all amounts ¢
both principal and interest, in accordance with ehiginal terms of the loan. Impaired loans are soead based on the present value of the exg
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effexiiverest rate or at the losndbservable market price or, as a practical exmdihe fair value of tt
collateral if the loan is collateral dependentetest income on impaired loans is recorded on #éisé basis. The Compasynanagement considers
non-accrual loans impaired.

The Company reviews each impaired loan on an iddali basis to determine if either a chaafeer a valuation allowance needs to be allocatethe
loan. The Company does not chaxfé-or allocate a valuation allowance to loans ¥anich management has concluded the current valughe
underlying collateral will allow for recovery oféHoan balance either through the sale of the twdy foreclosure and sale of the property.

The Company evaluates the underlying collateralugh a third party appraisal, or when a third pappraisal is not available, the Company will us
internal evaluation. The internal evaluations areppred using an income approach or a sales apprd&e income approach is used for inc
producing properties and uses current revenuesopsrting expenses to determine the net cash diowhe property. Once the net cash flov
determined, the value of the property is calculaisithg an appropriate capitalization rate for thepprty. The sales approach uses comparable
prices in the market. When an internal evaluatioused, we place greater reliance on the incomeagip to value the collateral.
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In preparing internal evaluations of property valufie Company seeks to obtain current data osubject property from various sources, includirig
the borrower; (2) copies of existing leases; (8plaeal estate brokers and appraisers; (4) puitiords (such as for real estate taxes and watkseame
charges); (5) comparable sales and rental dateeimtarket; (6) an inspection of the property andr{erviews with tenants. These internal evalus
primarily focus on the income approach and comparséles data to value the property.

As of September 30, 2014, we utilized recent tipiadty appraisals of the collateral to measure inmpant for $35.9 million, or 70.8%, of collate
dependent impaired loans, and used internal evahsaof the property’s value for $14.8 million,28.2%, of collateral dependent impaired loans.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable aWwerrexperiencing financial difficulties to contmmmaking payments when it is deemed to be i
Company’s best longerm interest. This restructure may include redgthre interest rate or amount of the monthly payfiena specified period
time, after which the interest rate and repaymemns revert to the original terms of the loan. Viassify these loans as Troubled Debt Restruc
(“TDR").

These restructurings have not included a reduafoprincipal balance. The Company believes thatrueturing these loans in this manner will al
certain borrowers to become and remain currentheir loans. Restructured loans are classified @R when the Bank grants a concession
borrower who is experiencing financial difficultiesll loans classified as TDR are considered imgihowever TDR loans which have been curret
six consecutive months at the time they are restrad as TDR remain on accrual status and arenetided as part of noperforming loans. Loal
which were delinquent at the time they are restmect as a TDR are placed on non-accrual statusegaited as noperforming loans until they ha
made timely payments for six consecutive monthsnisothat are restructured as TDR but are not peifigrin accordance with the restructured te
are placed on non-accrual status and reportedraperdorming loans.

The allocation of a portion of the allowance foarolosses for a performing TDR loan is based upemtesent value of the future expected cash
discounted at the loan’s original effective ratefar a nonperforming TDR which is collateral dependent, the Yalue of the collateral. At Septem
30, 2014, there were no commitments to lend addititunds to borrowers whose loans were modified T®WR. The modification of loans to a TDR
not have a significant effect on our operating itssmor did it require a significant allocationtbie allowance for loan losses.

The Bank did not modify and classify any loans BéRTduring the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

The following table shows loans modified and clfisdias TDR during the nine months ended Septe3®e2013:

For the nine months ended
September 30, 201

(Dollars in thousands Number Balance Modification descriptior

Received a below market interest rate and the loi 1
Multi-family residentia 1 $ 413 amortization was extende

Received a below market interest rate and the loi 1
Commercial real esta 2 761 amortization was extende

Received a below market interest rate and the loi 1
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 1 39C amortization was extende

Received a below market interest rate and the lo: 1
Commercial business and other 1 61E term was extended

Total 5 $ 2,17¢

The recorded investment of each of the loans mestdnd classified as TDR, presented in the tafibwe, was unchanged as there was no principal
forgiven in any of these modifications.
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The following table shows our recorded investmenmtlbans classified as TDR that are performing ediog to their restructured terms at the per
indicated:

September 30, 201 December 31, 201

Number of Recorded Number of Recorded

(Dollars in thousands contracts investmen contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia 10 $ 3,05(C 10 $ 3,087
Commercial real esta 4 3,63t 4 3,68¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7 2,39: 8 2,692
One-to-four family - residentia 1 357 1 364
Constructior - - 1 74€
Commercial business and ott 3 1,03t 4 3,127
Total performing troubled debt restructured 25 $ 10,47( 28 % 13,70:

During the nine months ended September 30, 20tde thDR loans totaling $2.7 million were transfdrte nonperforming status, which resultec
these loans being included in non-performing lodmg of these loans were paid subsequent to beamgfierred to noperforming loans and prior to t
end of the second quarter of 2014.

The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are not perforngiogording to their restructured terms at the pe
indicated:

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Number of Recorded Number of Recorded
(Dollars in thousands contracts investmen contracts investmen
Commercial real esta 1 3 2,18¢ 1 3 2,33
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 1 187 - -
Total troubled debt restructurings that subseqyetefaulted 2 $ 2,37¢ 1 $ 2,33
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The following table shows our non-performing loatshe periods indicated:

September 3C  December 31,
(In thousands 2014 2013
Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing
Multi-family residentia $ 97 $ 52
Commercial real esta 264 -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 421 -
One-to-four family - residentia 14 15
Commercial Business and other 351 53¢
Total 1,145 60€
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia® 7,287 13,297
Commercial real esta 5,972 9,96%
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 9,08: 9,06:
One-to-four family - residentia 11,02: 13,25(
Co-operative apartments - 57
Total 33,36¢ 45,62¢
Non-accrual nor-mortgage loans:
Commercial Business and other 1,15¢ 2,34¢
Total 1,15¢ 2,34¢
Total non-accrual loans 34,51¢ 47,975
Total non-accrual loans and loans ninety days or more past @uand still accruing $ 35,66¢ $ 48,58:¢
1) The table above does not include -performing Loans held for sale $0.4 million at Deeer 31, 2013, respectivel

The following is a summary of interest foregonenam-accrual loans and loans classified as TDRHeperiods indicated:

For the three months ended

For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(
2014 2013 2014 2013
(In thousands
Interest income that would have been recognizedimatbans performed in
accordance with their original terr $ 841 $ 1,507 $ 2,52¢ $ 4,52(
Less: Interest income included in the resultspErations 152 22E 572 95¢
Total foregone interest $ 68¢€ $ 1,28: $ 1,951 $ 3,561
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The following table shows an age analysis of ouorded investment in loans at September 30, 2014:

Greater
30-59 Days 60 - 89 Days than Total Past

(in thousands Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
Multi-family residentia $ 11,098 $ 2,72¢ % 7281 % 21,11C $ 1,784,994 $ 1,806,05!
Commercial real esta 7,97¢ 93€ 5,97: 14,88¢ 551,09: 565,97¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,73 2,83t 9,08¢ 25,65( 551,39: 577,04:
One-to-four family - residentia 3,081 1,56¢ 10,81« 15,46: 176,23t 191,70:
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - 9,77¢ 9,77¢
Construction loan - - - - 5,121 5,121
Small Business Administratic 96 - - 96 7,44( 7,53¢
Taxi medallion - - - - 22,66 22,66
Commercial business and ott 4 91 30¢ 404 448,52 448,92!

Total $ 35,98 $ 8,15¢ % 33,466 $ 77,60¢ $ 3,557,190 $ 3,634,79
The following table shows an age analysis of onorded investment in loans at December 31, 2013:

Greater
30-59 Days 60 - 89 Days than

(in thousands Past Due Past Due 90 Days Total Past Du Current Total Loans
Multi-family residentia $ 14,10 % 255 % 13,297 $ 29,95 $ 1,682,088 $ 1,712,03
Commercial real esta 5,02¢ 52¢ 9,96: 15,51« 497,03¢ 512,55:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 14,017 1,09¢ 9,06° 24,17¢ 571,57 595,75
One-to-four family - residentia 3,82¢ 51¢ 12,95: 17,29¢ 176,42 193,72¢
Cc-operative apartmen 99 - 144 242 9,89¢ 10,13
Construction loan - - - - 4,247 4,247
Small Business Administratic 10€ - - 10€ 7,68¢ 7,79z
Taxi medallion - - - - 13,12 13,12
Commercial business and ott 187 2 1,21: 1,402 372,23¢ 373,64

Total $ 37,360 $ 469 % 46,63: $ 88,69F $ 3,334,331 $ 3,423,00:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the three months endete®déer 30, 2014:

One-to-
four
family -  One-to-
Multi- mixed- four Co- Small Commercig
family ~Commercie  use family - operative Constructior  Business Taxi business

(in thousands residentia real estate property residentis apartment  loans  Administratior medallior and othel Total
Allowance for credit losses
Beginning balanc $ 10,75($ 5327 $ 6,99: % 1,79C $ -$ 34 % 37 $ 14 $ 395 $§ 29,23t

Charg-off's (412) (221) (47) (18) - - - - (5) (703)

Recoverie! 3 99 19¢€ 104 - - 15 - 13 43C

Provision (197) (219 (472) (102) - 7 (37) (3) 40E (61¢)
Ending balanc $ 10,14« $ 498t $ 667($ 1,774 $ - 3% 41 $ 351 $ 11 $ 4361 $ 28,34«
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer _$ 292 $ 23§ 591% 55 % - $ -3 -3 - $ 168 $ 1,12¢
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairmer $ 9,852 ¢ 4,961 § 6,07¢ $ 171¢ § - $ 41 $ 351 $ 11§ 4,19¢ $§ 27,21t
Financing Receivables
Ending balanc $1,806,05! $ 565,97¢ $577,04: $191,70. $ 9,77¢ $ 5121 $ 7,53€ $ 22,667 $ 448,92! $3,634,79
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer  $ 13,641 $ 12,52¢ $ 16,51¢ $ 12,87 $ - $ - $ -5 -$ 6,781 $ 62,34¢

Ending balance: collectivel . . -
evaluated for impairmer  $1.792,40° $ 553,45« $560,52! $178,82° § 9.77¢ § 5121 $ 7,53€ $ 22,661 $ 442,13¢ $3,572,45
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the three months endete®der 30, 2013:

One-to-
four
family -  One-to-
Multi- mixed- four Co- Small Commercig
family ~Commercie  use family - operative Constructior  Business Taxi business

(in thousands residentia real estate property residentis apartment  loans  Administratior medallior and othel Total
Allowance for credit losses
Beginning balanc $ 1295¢¢$ 588/ % 643¢$ 2,09 $ 99 ¢ 19¢ $ 497 $ 4% 418 $ 32,35t

Charg-off's (710 a7y (64%) (4) - (2,379 (89 - (1,199 (5,18¢)

Recoverie! 90 - 58 11 - - 17 - 36 212

Provision (561) (603) 76 (152) - 2,44 71 (4) 2,165 3,43
Ending balanc $ 11,77 $ 511C $ 592:$ 195 $ 99 $ 26 $ 49€ $ -$ 5192 % 30,81¢
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer _$ 26E $ 271C $  64c $ 59 $ - $ 17 $ -3 - $ 16€ $  1,42¢
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairmer $ 1151 $ 484( $ 5274/ $ 1,89 $ 99 $ 248 $ 49¢ $ -$ 502 $ 29,39
Financing Receivables
Ending balanc $1,684,27 $ 516,31« $595,43! $196,65¢ $ 10,16t $ 464f $ 8,000 $ 5,08t $ 364,06¢ $3,384,65!
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer  $ 26,06¢ $ 24,73t $ 16,98( $ 15,12( $ 164 $ 2341 % - % -$ 511C$ 90,52
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairmet $1,658,20! $ 491,57¢ $578,45! $181,53¢ $ 10,001 $ 2,30¢ $ 8,00 $ 5,08t $ 358,95¢ $3,294,13.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the nine months endece8syr 30, 2014:

One-to-
four
family -  One-to-
Multi- mixed- four Co- Small Commercig
family ~Commercie  use family - operative Constructior  Business Taxi business

(in thousands residentia real estatc property residentis apartment  loans  Administratior medallior and othel Total
Allowance for credit losses
Beginning balanc $ 12,08¢$ 495¢ $ 6,326 § 2,07¢ $ 104 $ 444 $ 45¢ $ -$ 5320 % 31,77¢

Charg-off's (1,086 (307) (30%) 97) - - (49 - (130 (1,979

Recoverie! 144 481 331 26¢ 7 - 76 - 63 1,371

Provision (998 (147) 31€ (477) (117 (409) (134 11 (88€) (2,829
Ending balanc $ 10,14« $ 498t $ 6,67( % 1,774 $ -$ 41 $ 351 $ 11 $ 4361 $ 28,34
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer ~_$ 292 $ 23 $ 591 ¢ 55 $ S -3 - $ -8 166 $ 1,12¢
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairmer $ 9.85: $§ 4,962 § 6,07¢$ 1,71¢ $ - % 41 $ 351 $ 11§ 4,19¢ $§ 27,21¢
Financing Receivables
Ending balanc $1,806,05( $ 565,97¢ $577,04: $191,70. $ 9,77¢ $ 5121 $ 7,53¢ $ 22,667 $ 448,92 $3,634,79
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer $ 13,64t $ 1252t $ 16,51¢ $ 12,87+ $ - $ - $ -3 -$ 6,781 $ 62,34¢

Ending balance: collectivel . } -
evaluated for impairmer  $1.792,40° $ 55345« $560,52! $178,82 § 9.77¢ § 5121 $ 7,53€ $ 22,661 $ 442,13¢ $3,572,45
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the nine months endedeSsyr 30, 2013:

One-to-
four
family -  One-to-
Multi- mixed- four Co- Small Commercig
family ~Commercie  use family - operative Constructior  Business Taxi business

(in thousands residentia real estate property residentis apartment  loans  Administratior medallior and othel Total
Allowance for credit losses
Beginning balanc $ 13,000 $ 570t $ 596( $ 1,99¢ $ 46 $ 6€ $ 50t $ 7% 381t $ 31,10¢

Charg-off's (3,459 (905) (3,780 (695) (74) (2,679 (42¢) - (2,057 (14,07

Recoverie! 15t 29z 16¢ 117 4 - 77 - 36 851

Provision 2,08( 17 3,574 53z 1232 2,87 34C (7) 3,39¢ 12,93t
Ending balanc $ 11,77 $ 511C $ 592:$ 195 $ 99 $ 26 $ 49€ $ -$ 5192 % 30,81¢
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer _$ 26E $ 271C $  64c $ 59 $ - $ 17 $ -3 - $ 16€ $  1,42¢
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairmer $ 1151 $ 484( $ 5274/ $ 1,89 $ 99 $ 248 $ 49¢ $ -$ 502 $ 29,39
Financing Receivables
Ending balanc $1,684,27 $ 516,31« $595,43! $196,65¢ $ 10,16t $ 464f $ 8,000 $ 5,08t $ 364,06¢ $3,384,65!
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmer  $ 26,06¢ $ 24,73t $ 16,98( $ 15,12( $ 164 $ 2341 % - % -$ 511C$ 90,52
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairmet $1,658,20! $ 491,57¢ $578,45! $181,53¢ $ 10,001 $ 2,30¢ $ 8,00 $ 5,08t $ 358,95¢ $3,294,13.
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The following table shows our recorded investmenpaid principal balance and allocated allowanecddan losses, average recorded investmen
interest income recognized for loans that were idensd impaired at or for the nine month periodezh8eptember 30, 2014:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investmen: Balance Allowance Investmen: Recognizet

(In thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 10,85 % 12,307 % = $ 15,397 % 15C
Commercial real esta 10,14¢ 10,447 - 12,73¢ 231
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 13,40¢ 15,11¢ - 13,12¢ 20¢
One-to-four family residentia 12,517 15,40: - 13,08: 75
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior - - - 38C -

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 4,02¢ 5,61¢ - 4,987 14C
Total loans with no related allowance recor: 50,94 58,89( - 59,71( 804
With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 2,79z 2,79z 292 2,98¢ 112
Commercial real esta 2,38( 2,38( 23 3,532 12t
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 3,11C 3,11cC 591 3,30(¢ 12¢
One-to-four family residentia 357 357 515 35¢ 11
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior - - - 24¢ -

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 2,761 2,761 16¢€ 3,29¢ 112
Total loans with an allowance recorc 11,40( 11,40( 1,12¢ 13,72: 48¢
Total Impaired Loans

Total mortgage loar $ 55,565¢ $ 6191 % 961 $ 65,15, % 1,04(
Total nor-mortgage loan $ 6,781 _$ 837¢ _$ 16¢  $ 8281 $ 252
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(Unaudited)

The following table shows our recorded investmanpaid principal balance and allocated allowancéddan losses, average recorded investment and
interest income recognized for loans that were idensd impaired at or for the year ended Decembe@313:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognize(

(In thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 18,70¢ $ 20,93: % - 3 22,090 % 40z
Commercial real esta 16,72: 17,40 - 19,84¢ 26¢€
One-to-four family mixec-use property 12,74¢ 15,25¢ - 13,91¢ 31¢
One-to-four family residentia 14,02¢ 17,527 - 14,52¢ 12&
Cc-operative apartmen 59 147 - 18¢ -
Constructior - 11¢€ - 4,01¢ -
Non-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic - - - 247 -
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 3,22¢ 5,527 - 5,30¢ 26¢

Total loans with no related allowance recor: 65,48¢ 76,91 - 80,14 1,38(

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 3,04¢ 3,04¢ 312 2,89: 17C
Commercial real esta 3,03¢ 3,10z 164 6,38¢ 194
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 4,191 4,221 87t 4,041 22¢
One-to-four family residentia 364 364 58 36¢ 15
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior 74¢€ 74¢€ 17 1,92¢ 18

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - S - - -
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and ott 4,89 4,894 222 4,35 23¢

Total loans with an allowance recorc 16,28( 16,37¢ 1,64¢ 19,97: 864
Total Impaired Loans

Total mortgage loan $ 73,646  $ 82,86t $ 142¢ $ 90,20:  $ 1,73

Total nor-mortgage loan $ 8,12( $ 10,42: $ 222 $ 9,91( $ 507

In accordance with our policy and the current ratprly guidelines, we designate loans as “Speciaitide,” which are considered “Criticized Loans,”
and “Substandard,” “Doubtful,” or “Loss,” which amdnsidered “Classified Loanstf a loan does not fall within one of the previoogentione:
categories then the loan would be considered “Pas®se loan designations are updated quarterly.déggnate a loan as Substandard when a well
defined weakness is identified that jeopardizesotiderly liquidation of the debt. We designate anl®oubtful when it displays the inherent weakraf

a Substandard loan with the added provision thiéea@n of the debt in full, on the basis of ekist facts, is highly improbable. We designate anlas
Loss if it is deemed the debtor is incapable ofiyapent. The Company does not hold any loans desidrees Loss, as loans that are designated a:

are charged to the Allowance for Loan Losses. Ldhas are noraccrual are designated as Substandard or Doultieldesignate a loan as Spe
Mention if the asset does not warrant classificatidgthin one of the other classifications, but deesitain a potential weakness that deserves «
attention.
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The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or Class#ie8eptember 30, 2014:

Special

(In thousands Mention Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 7,99¢ % 9,44: % 1,15C $ - 3 18,59:
Commercial real esta 9,28¢ 10,14¢ - - 19,43:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 6,32¢ 13,88t - - 20,20¢
One-to-four family - residentia 2,741 12,75¢ - - 15,49¢
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Construction loan - - - - -
Small Business Administratic 294 - - - 294
Commercial business and ott 154 4,994 50 - 5,19¢

Total loans $ 26,80 $ 51,22 $ 1,20( $ - $ 79,22+
The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Ciriticized or ClassidieDecember 31, 2013:

Special

(In thousands Mention Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 9,94C % 19,08¢ $ - 3 - 3 29,02¢
Commercial real esta 13,50: 16,82( - - 30,32
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7,99z 14,89¢ - - 22,89(
One-to-four family - residentia 2,84¢ 14,02¢ - - 16,87¢
Cc-operative apartmen - 59 - - 59
Construction loan 74€ - - - 74€
Small Business Administratic 31C - - - 31C
Commercial business and ott 7,31¢ 8,45( 50 - 15,81«

Total loans $ 4265 $ 73,34: $ 50 $ - $ 116,04

Commitments to extend credit (principally real &staortgage loans) and lines of credit (principdlbme equity lines of credit and business line
credit) amounted to $94.2 million and $180.1 miilicespectively, at September 30, 2014.

6. Loans held for sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cogstimated fair value. At September 30, 20kd,Bank had one multamily residential loan held f
sale of $1.2 million. At December 31, 2013, the Baad one multi-family residential loan held fotesaf $0.4 million.

The Company has implemented a strategy of sellantaim delinquent and ngmerforming loans. Once the Company has decideélt@doan, the sa
usually closes in a short period of time, generalithin the same quarter. Loans designated as fueldale are reclassified from loans held
investment to loans held for sale. Terms of sattue cash due upon the closing of the sale, ntngencies or recourse to the Company and sen
is released to the buyer.

The Bank did not sell any loans during the threati® ended September 30, 2014.
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The following table shows delinquent and non-periog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the three months ended
September 30, 201

Net charge-
(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed: offs Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 2 % 2,07¢ % 65 $ -
Commercial real esta 1 76C - 6
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 4 1,487 (243) (5)
Total 7 $ 432¢ % ave) $ 1

The following tables show delinquent and non-periioig loans sold during the periods indicated:

For the nine months ended
September 30, 201

Net (charg-offs)

(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed: recoveries Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 7 % 321¢ % (700 $ =
Commercial real esta 3 2,047 29t -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 6 2,06¢ 38 -
Total 16 $ 733 % 263 $ -
For the nine months ended
September 30, 201
Net charge-
(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed: offs Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 17 % 9,13¢ % (2,030 $ 6
Commercial real esta 8 4,22: (564) 6
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 34 9,44¢ 2,779 (52
Commercial business and ott 2 66 (18E) -
Total 61 $ 22,87¢ $ (4,559 $ (40)

The above table does not include the sale of orferpeing commercial real estate loan for $2.4 milli resulting in a net gain of $184,000 during the

nine months ended September 30, 2013.
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7. Other Real Estate Ownec

The following are changes in Other Real Estate QWM@REQO”) during the periods indicated:

For the three months ended  For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(
2014 2013 2014 2013
(In thousands
Balance at beginning of peri $ 1,34 $ 2591 $ 298 $ 5,27¢
Acquisitions 5,14: 1,78¢ 5,74¢ 4,54:
Write-down of carrying valu - (63 (5) (2439
Sales (697) (810) (2,939) (6,075
Balance at end of period $ 579 $ 3,50 $ 579 $ 3,50¢

The following table shows the gross gains, grossde and writedlowns of OREO reported in the Consolidated Statésneilncome during the peric
indicated:

For the three months ended For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(

2014 2013 2014 2013

(In thousands (In thousands
Gross gain: $ - $ 192 % 13z % 433
Gross losse (39 - (65) (89)
Write-down of carrying value - (63) (5) (249
Total $ (39 $ 12¢ % 62 $ 101

8. Stock-Based Compensatior

For the three months ended September 30, 2014Gi8] the Companyg net income, as reported, includes $0.5 millioth 8.4 million, respectively, (
stock-based compensation costs and $0.2 milliorfs@r@l million, respectively, of income tax benefitéated to the stock-based compensation plans. Fo
the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and g 8ompany’s net income, as reported, included &@lion and $2.9 million, respectively, of
stock-based compensation costs and $1.4 milliorfarti million, respectively, of income tax benefitdated to the stock-based compensation plans.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtiasing the Blaclscholes valuation model. Key assumptions usedtimate the fair value of sto
options include the exercise price of the award,gkpected option term, the expected volatilitghef Company’s stock price, the rifiiee interest ra
over the optionséxpected term and the annual dividend yield. Then@amy uses the fair value of the common stock endtite of award to meas
compensation cost for restricted stock unit awa@isnpensation cost is recognized over the vestangpg of the award using the straight line met
There were 2,800 and 2,400 restricted stock umastgd during the three months ended Septembe2®0@l and 2013, respectively. During the |
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Gyngpanted 266,895 and 246,045 restricted stocts urdspectively. There were no stock opt
granted during the three and nine months endec8yerr 30, 2014 and 2013.
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The 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“Omnibus Plasgame effective on May 20, 2014 after approvahigystockholders. The Omnibus Plan autho
the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Boéiirectors (the “Compensation Committe¢d)grant a variety of equity compensation awart
well as longterm and annual cash incentive awards, all of wisieh, but need not, be structured so as to comjily 8ection 162(m) of the Interr
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Interna¢iey Code”)The Omnibus Plan authorizes the issuance of 1,000s0ares. To the extent tha
award under the Omnibus Plan is cancelled, expfoteited, settled in cash, settled by issuanctewkr shares than the number underlying the a
or otherwise terminated without delivery of shaies participant in payment of the exercise pricéages relating to an award, the shares retaigeut
returned to the Company will be available for fetissuance under the Omnibus Plan. Although, comimgmupon the approval of the Omnibus Pla
stockholders, no further awards may be granted rutitee Companys 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan, 1996 Stock Opticcemtive Plan, and 19
Restricted Stock Incentive Plan (the “Prior Plansil) outstanding awards under the Prior Plans statitinue in accordance with their terms.
September 30, 2014, there were 1,097,200 sharélaldeafor delivery in connection with awards undbe Omnibus Plan. To satisfy stock op
exercises or fund restricted stock and restrictecksunit awards, shares are issued from treasack sif available; otherwise new shares are isstliae
exercise price per share of a stock option grant n@ be less than the fair market value of the mom stock of the Company, as defined in
Omnibus Plan, on the date of grant and may notehgriced without the approval of the Compangtockholders. Options, stock appreciation rit
restricted stock, restricted stock units and ofteck based awards granted under the Omnibus Riageaerally subject to a minimum vesting peric
three years with stock options having ayEar maximum contractual term. Other awards ddage a contractual term of expiration. The Compigos
Committee is authorized to grant awards that vpetua participant’s retirement. These amountsrarkided in stockkased compensation expense a
time of the participant’s retirement eligibility.

The following table summarizes the Company’s rettd stock unit (“RSU”awards under the Omnibus Plan and the Prior Platisei aggregate at
for the nine months ended September 30, 2014:

WeightedAverage
Grant-Date Fair
Shares Value

Nonr-vested at December 31, 20 346,58 $ 14.0¢
Granted 266,89! 20.1%
Vested (200,32) 16.8¢
Forfeited (19,142 15.5¢
Non-vested at September 30, 2014 394,01: $ 16.71
Vested but unissued at September 30, 2014 217,227 $ 16.92

As of September 30, 2014, there was $4.8 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related td BBards granted under the Omnibus Plar
the Prior Plans. That cost is expected to be rdzedrover a weightedverage period of 3.2 years. The total fair valiiaveards vested during the th
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were(bfgb@ach respective period. The total fair vatfieawards vested for the nine months et
September 30, 2014 and 2013 were $4.1 million ad@ #illion, respectively. The vested but unissi®R8U awards consist of awards mad
employees and directors who are eligible for retgat. According to the terms of these awards, wipbvide for vesting upon retirement, th
employees and directors have no risk of forfeitliteese shares will be issued at the original cohied vesting and settlement dates.
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The following table summarizes certain informatiegarding the stock option awards under the Omnitdas and the Prior Plans in the aggregate
for the nine months ended September 30, 2014:

Weighted- WeightedAverage Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value

Shares Price (years) ($000)*
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 306,63( $ 16.0z - -
Granted - - - -
Exercisec (105,92Y 17.01 - -
Forfeited (1,300 19.37 - -
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 199,40' $ 15.4¢ 32 $ 627
Exercisable shares at September 30, 2014 199,40! $ 15.4¢ 32 $ 627

* The intrinsic value of a stock option is the difénce between the market value of the underlytimcksand the exercise price of the option.
As of September 30, 2014, there is no remainingaognized compensation cost related to stock opgoanted.

Cash proceeds, fair value received, tax benefits the intrinsic value related to stock options eisad during the three and nine months e
September 30, 2014 and 2013 are provided in thexirg table:

For the three months ended For the nine months ended
September 3( September 3(
(In thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Proceeds from stock options exerci: $ 82 % 7 % 51z $ 31z
Fair value of shares received upon exercised cksiptions - 2,32° 1,29( 4,07¢
Tax benefit related to stock options exerci 1 (72) 94 97
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis 18 43€ 33t 81:¢

Phantom Stock PlanThe Company maintains a ngualified phantom stock plan as a supplement t@iitsit sharing plan for officers who he
achieved the level of Senior Vice President andvatamd completed one year of service. Howevercaf§i who had achieved at least the level of
President and completed one year of service pridahuary 1, 2009 remain eligible to participatéhimm phantom stock plan. Awards are made unde
plan on certain compensation not eligible for awanthde under the profit sharing plan, due to theageof the profit sharing plan and the Inte
Revenue Code. Employees receive awards under ldnisppoportionate to the amount they would haveiked under the profit sharing plan, but
limits imposed by the profit sharing plan and théetnal Revenue Code. The awards are made as wastisa and then converted to common s
equivalents (phantom shares) at the then currerkahaalue of the Company’s common stock. Divideadscredited to each employseccount in tr
form of additional phantom shares each time the @om pays a dividend on its common stock. In thenewf a change of control (as defined in
plan), an employee’s interest is converted to adixlollar amount and deemed to be invested in dheesmanner as his interest in the Bank’s non-
qualified deferred compensation plan. Employees ueder this plan 20% per year for 5 years. Empayalso become 100% vested upon a char
control. Employees receive their vested interedhis plan in the form of a cash lump sum paymennstallments, as elected by the employee,
termination of employment. The Company adjustfiatsility under this plan to the fair value of tebares at the end of each period.
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The following table summarizes the Phantom Stoek Rk or for the nine months ended September 304:20

Phantom Stock Pla Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2C 59,327 $ 20.7(
Granted 9,14: 19.82
Forfeited (55) 19.7¢
Distributions (1,736 19.6¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 66,67: $ 18.27
Vested at September 30, 2014 66,557 $ 18.27

The Company recorded stoblesed compensation (benefit) expense for the PmaStock Plan of ($0.1) million and $0.1 million ftve three montt
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectivetytdkal fair value of the distributions from theaPktom Stock Plan was $21,000 for the three mu
ended September 30, 2014. There were no distrimititade from the Phantom Stock Plan during thethmenths ended September 30, 2013.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 atf?| #te Company recorded stdoised compensation (benefit) expense for the PimaStock Pla
of ($0.1) million and $0.2 million, respectivelyh& total fair value of the distributions from théahtom Stock Plan during the nine months e
September 30, 2014 and 2013 were $34,000 and $8@s)iectively.

9. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plan

The following table sets forth information regamlithe components of net expense for the pensiom#ad postretirement benefit plans.

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 3( September 3(
(In thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Employee Pension Pla
Interest cos $ 22: % 207 % 66 $ 621
Amortization of unrecognized lo 19C 30€ 57C 91¢
Expected return on plan assets (33€) (31E) (1,009) (945)
Net employee pension expense $ 77 % 19¢ $ 231 $ 594
Outside Director Pension Ple
Service cos $ 13 % 21 $ 39 $ 63
Interest cos 29 24 87 72
Amortization of unrecognized ge (15) 9) (45) 27
Amortization of past service liability 10 9 30 27
Net outside director pension expense $ 37 $ 45 $ 111 $ 135
Other Postretirement Benefit Plal
Service cos $ QN % 112 $ 27C % 33€
Interest cos 63 55 18¢ 165
Amortization of unrecognized lo - 12 - 36
Amortization of past service credit (22) (20) (67) (60)
Net other postretirement expense $ 131 $ 15¢ $ 392 % 477

The Company previously disclosed in its Consolid&mancial Statements for the year ended DeceBthe2013 that it expects to contribute $0.2
million and $0.3 million to the Outside Directorridgon Plan (the “Outside Director Pension Plan'§ #re other postretirement benefit plans (tB¢te!
Postretirement Benefit Plansigspectively, during the year ending December 8142 The Company does not expect to make a cotitibto the
Employee Pension Plan (the “Employee Pension Plas’pf September 30, 2014, the Company has conéib$84,000 to the Outside Director Pen
Plan and $42,000 to the Other Postretirement BeR&dns. As of September 30, 2014, the Companynbasevised its expected contributions for
year ending December 31, 2014.
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10. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company carries certain financial assets amghial liabilities at fair value in accordance WASC Topic 825, “Financial Instruments”ASC
Topic 825") and values those financial assets aindn€ial liabilities in accordance with ASC Topi2® “Fair Value Measurements ¢
Disclosures” (“ASC Topic 820”)ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price thatld be received to sell an asset or paid to tearssliability in ar
orderly transaction between market participanth@atmeasurement date, establishes a frameworkdasuning fair value and expands disclosures i
fair value measurements. ASC Topic 825 permitstieatio choose to measure many financial instrusmand certain other items at fair value
September 30, 2014, the Company carried finansiggta and financial liabilities under the fair vahption with fair values of $38.7 million and $3
million, respectively. At December 31, 2013, then@any carried financial assets and financial liabd under the fair value option with fair valuef
$37.3 million and $29.6 million, respectively. TB®@mpany elected to measure at fair value, secsinitieh a cost of $5.0 million that were purche
during the nine months ended September 30, 201et Ciimpany did not elect to carry any additionaficial assets or financial liabilities under thie
value option during the nine months ended Septer@@eR013. During the nine months ended Septembe2@L4, the Company sold financial as
carried under the fair value option totaling $1.@ion.

The following table presents the financial assets #nancial liabilities reported at fair value wrdhe fair value option, and the changes in faiug
included in the Consolidated Statement of InconNet-gain (loss) from fair value adjustments, afoorthe periods ended as indicated:

Changes in Fair Values For Items Measured at Faling/

Fair Value Fair Value Pursuant to Election of the Fair Value Opt

Measurements Measurements Three Months Ende Nine Months Ende:
at September 3 at December 3 September 3 September 3° September 3 September 3

(Dollars in thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Mortgagebacked securitie $ 4,89: $ 7,11¢ $ (16) $ 95) $ 56 $ (62€)
Other securitie 33,79¢ 30,16: 14 (38)) 511 (32¢)
Borrowed funds 29,53t 29,57( (144 (272 35 (2,549
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustme(® () $ (146) $ (748) $ 602 (3,501)

(1) The net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmentspnged in the above table does not include nesdéisses) of ($0.3) million and $0.6 milli
for the three months ended September 30, 2014 @8l 2espectively, from the change in the fair eadfiinterest rate caps/Swa

(2) The net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmentspnged in the above table does not include nesdéeses) of ($2.1) million and $2.9 milli
for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 ah8, 28spectively, from the change in the fair vadfienterest rate caps/Swa|

Included in the fair value of the financial assatsl financial liabilities selected for the fair waloption is the accrued interest receivable oapkeyfol
the related instrument. The Company accrues orfittamcial instruments and reports, as interest imecr interest expense in the Consolid
Statement of Income, the interest receivable oapkyon the financial instruments selected forfélirevalue option at their respective contractudés.

The borrowed funds had a contractual principal amhofi$61.9 million at both September 30, 2014 Bredember 31, 2013. The fair value of borro
funds includes accrued interest payable of $0.lianikt September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
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The Company generally holds its earning asset&rdttan securities available for sale, to matuaityl settles its liabilities at maturity. Howeveair
value estimates are made at a specific point ie timd are based on relevant market informationsd lestimates do not reflect any premium or disc
that could result from offering for sale at onedithe Company entire holdings of a particular instrument. Actingly, as assumptions change, suc
interest rates and prepayments, fair value estsratange and these amounts may not necessaridalized in an immediate sale.

Disclosure of fair value does not require fair \ealoformation for items that do not meet the deifami of a financial instrument or certain otherdiirtia
instruments specifically excluded from its requiemts. These items include core deposit intangibtes other customer relationships, premises
equipment, leases, income taxes and equity.

Further, fair value disclosure does not attemptaioe future income or business. These items maydterial and accordingly, the fair value inforroa
presented does not purport to represent, nor sliolbddconstrued to represent, the underlying “radrr franchise value of the Company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities repor&dair value are required to be measured basegitoer: (1) quoted prices in active markets famitica
financial instruments (Level 1); (2) significanhet observable inputs (Level 2); or (3) significanbbservable inputs (Level 3).

A description of the methods and significant asstimng utilized in estimating the fair value of tBempanys assets and liabilities that are carried a
value on a recurring basis are as follows:

Level 1 —where quoted market prices are available in avectiarket. The Company did not value any of itetsser liabilities that are carried at -
value on a recurring basis as Level 1 at Septe@®e2014 and December 31, 2013.

Level 2 —-when quoted market prices are not available, faluer is estimated using quoted market prices foilai financial instruments and adjusted
differences between the quoted instrument andnisteument being valued. Fair value can also benestid by using pricing models, or discounted
flows. Pricing models primarily use markedsed or independently sourced market parameteirgpats, including, but not limited to, yield cusy
interest rates, equity or debt prices and credi¢éas. In addition to observable market informatimodels also incorporate maturity and cash
assumptions. At September 30, 2014 and Decemb@038, Level 2 included mortgage related securitiegporate debt and interest rate caps/Swaps.

Level 3 —when there is limited activity or less transpareaoyund inputs to the valuation, financial instrumseare classified as Level 3. At Septen
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, Level 3 includedicipal securities and trust preferred securities@d by and junior subordinated debentures i<
by the Company.

The methods described above may produce fair vahasmay not be indicative of net realizable vatuereflective of future fair values. While 1
Company believes its valuation methods are appternd consistent with those of other market g@pgits, the use of different methodoloc
assumptions and models to determine fair valueegam financial instruments could produce différestimates of fair value at the reporting date.
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The following table sets forth the assets and lités that are carried at fair value on a recigrirasis and the method that was used to deteriiméir
fair value, at September 30, 2014 and Decembe2(®I13:

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas

September 3 December 3:

September 3 December 3:

September 3 December 3:

September 3 December 3:

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Assets:

Mortgage-backec

Securities $ - $ - $ 696,20¢ $ 756,15t $ - $ - $ 696,20¢ $ 756,15t

Other securitie - - 262,09° 237,47t 26,07: 24,15¢ 288,16¢ 261,63«

Interest rate swa - - 174 2,081 - - 174 2,081

Total assets $ - $ - $ 958,48( $ 995,71: $ 26,07. $ 24,15¢ $ 984,55. $ 1,019,87
Liabilities:

Borrowings $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 29,53t $ 29,57 $ 29,53t $ 29,57(

Interest rate swa - - 53t - - - 53t -

Total liabilities  $ - $ - $ 53t $ - % 29,53t $ 29,57( $ 30,07C $ 29,57(

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetsliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of the
valuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

For the three months ended
September 30, 201
Trust preferrec Junior subordinate

Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands
Beginning balanc $ 10,59: $ 13,36: $ 29,38t¢
Transfer into Level . - - -
Purchase 2,00( - -
Maturities (85) - -
Principal repayment (59 - -
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiatets - 45 -
Net loss from fair value adjustment of financialilities - - 14¢
Increase in accrued interest paye - - 2
Change in unrealized gains (losses) included irratbomprehensive income - 212 =
Ending balance $ 12,45° % 13,61¢ $ 29,53t
Changes in unrealized held at period end $ -$ 212 $ =
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The following table sets forth the Company's asastkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of the

valuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

Beginning balanc
Transfer into Level .

For the three months ended
September 30, 201

Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiatets -
Net loss from fair value adjustment of financialdilities -

Increase in accrued interest paye
Other-thar-temporary impairment charg

Change in unrealized gains (losses) included isratbmprehensive income

Ending balance
Changes in unrealized held at period end

REMIC
and Trust preferrec Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands
$ 2293 $ 9,327 $ 8,361 $ 26,19:
- (362) -
- - 272
= = - 1
(91€) - - -
(1,820) (52 (500 -
$ 2019 $ 9,27t $ 7,50¢ $ 26,46
$ (1820 % (52 $ (500) $ =

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetsliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of the

valuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

Beginning balanc
Transfer into Level :
Purchase
Maturities

Principal repayment
Sales

Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiatets
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiaHbilities

Decrease in accrued interest paye

Change in unrealized gains (losses) included irratbmprehensive income

Ending balance
Changes in unrealized held at period end
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For the nine months ended
September 30, 201
Trust preferrec Junior subordinate

Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands

$ 922t % 14,93t $ 29,57(
4,47t - -
(2,08%) - -
(160 - -
- (1,87)) -
- 9¢ -
- - (34)
- - 1
- 45k -
$ 12457 $ 13,61¢ $ 29,53t
$ -$ 45E $ -
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The following table sets forth the Company's asartsliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of the
valuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

For the nine months ended
September 30, 201

REMIC
and Trust preferrec Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands
Beginning balanc $ 2347 $ 9,42¢ $ 6,65C $ 23,92:
Transfer into Level . - - - -
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiatets - - 15C -
Net loss from fair value adjustment of financialdilities - - - 2,547
Increase in accrued interest paye - - - (4)
Other-thar-temporary impairment charg (1,419 - - -
Change in unrealized gains (losses) included irratbmprehensive income (1,862) (154) 70€ =
Ending balance $ 20,19¢ % 9,27t $ 7,50¢ $ 26,46"
Changes in unrealized held at period end $ (1,862 % (154) $ 70€ $ =

During three and nine months ended September 361, 2uirchases added to Level 3 were due to illiquahd reduced price transparency. There were
no purchases added to level 3 during the threenam@months ended September 30, 2013. During tiee #ind nine months ended September 30, 2014
and 2013, there were no transfers between Lev&sahd 3.

The following table presents the quantitative infation about recurring Level 3 fair value of finalénstruments and the fair value measurementsf
September 30, 2014:

September 30, 201 Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands

Assets:
Municipals $ 12,45 Discounted cash flow Discount rate 0.2% - 4.0% (2.8%)
Discount rate 7.0% - 10.4% (8.4%)
Prepayment assumptio  30.4% - 39.7% (35.0%)
Trust Preferred Securitie $ 13,61¢ Discounted cash flow Defaults 0.2% - 20.5% (10.5%)
Liabilities:
Junior subordinated debent. $ 29,53t Discounted cash flow Discount rate 7.0% (7.0%)

The significant unobservable inputs used in the falue measurement of the Company’s municipal isigesi valued under Level 3 are the securities’
effective yield. Significant increases or decreandhe effective yield in isolation would result & significantly lower or higher fair value measment.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Company’s trust predesegurities valued under Level 3 are the secatitie
prepayment assumptions and default rate. Significeneases or decreases in any of the inputlatisn would result in a significantly lower orghiel
fair value measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the falue measurement of the Companjunior subordinated debentures under Level 3effective
yield. Significant increases or decreases in tfectbe yield in isolation would result in a sigieéintly lower or higher fair value measurement.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s asseid liabilities that are carried at fair valueamonrecurring basis and the method that was us
determine their fair value, at September 30, 20idiecember 31, 2013:

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3. September 3 December 3:
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Assets:
Loans held for sal $ - % - % - $ - $ 1,15C $ 425 $ 1,15C $ 42F
Impaired loan: - - - - 26,84 23,54+ 26,84’ 23,54
Other real estate
owned - - - - 5,792 2,98t 5,792 2,98t
Total assets $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 33,78¢ $ 26,95 $ 33,78¢ $ 26,95

The following table presents the quantitative imation about nomecurring Level 3 fair value of financial instrumerand the fair value measurem
as of September 30, 2014:

September 30, 201 Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands

Assets:

Loans held for sal $ 1,15C Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 48.6% (48.6%

Impaired loan: $ 26,84 Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 0.5% - 89.5% (29.1%

Other real estate ownt $ 5,792 Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 0.0% - 24.6% (1.6%)

The Company carries its Loans held for sale and OREthe expected sales price less selling costs.
The Company carries its impaired collateral depanhbiens at 85% of the appraised or internallynested value of the underlying property.
The Company did not have any liabilities that weaieried at fair value on a non-recurring basisegit8mber 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

The estimated fair value of each material claséinzincial instruments at September 30, 2014 andeBbéer 31, 2013 and the related methods
assumptions used to estimate fair value are asaisll

Cash and Due from Banks, Overnight Interest-EarningDeposits and Federal Funds Sold:

The fair values of financial instruments that grers-term or reprice frequently and have littlenorrisk are considered to have a fair value that
approximates carrying value (Level 1).

FHLB-NY stock:

The fair value is based upon the par value of tbekswhich equals its carrying value (Level 2).
Securities Available for Sale:

The estimated fair values of securities availablestle are contained in Noteo6Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ¥aline is based up
guoted market prices (Level 1 input), where avddalf a quoted market price is not available, featue is estimated using quoted market price
similar securities and adjusted for differencesMeen the quoted instrument and the instrument beaiged (Level 2 input). When there is limi
activity or less transparency around inputs tovidleation, securities are valued using (Level 3uthp

Loans held for sale:

The fair value of non-performing loans held foresil estimated through bids received on the loadsas such, are classified as a Level 3 input.
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Loans:

The estimated fair value of loans is estimated ibgalinting the expected future cash flows usingctiveent rates at which similar loans would be n
to borrowers with similar credit ratings and reni@inmaturities (Level 3 input).

For impaired loans, fair value is generally estiedaby discounting managemengstimate of future cash flows with a discount @mmensurate wi
the risk associated with such assets or for collattependent loans 85% of the appraised or inflgrestimated value of the property (Level 3 input)

Due to Depositors:

The fair values of demand, passbook savings, NOWhaey market deposits and escrow deposits are, fiyitdm, equal to the amount payable
demand at the reporting dates (i.e. their carryge) (Level 1). The fair value of fixemtaturity certificates of deposits are estimatedlizgounting th
expected future cash flows using the rates cugrerftbred for deposits of similar remaining matiest(Level 2 input).

Borrowings:

The estimated fair value of borrowings are estimhdiye discounting the contractual cash flows usimgrest rates in effect for borrowings with sirr
maturities and collateral requirements (Level diir using a market-standard model (Level 3 ipnput

Interest Rate Caps:
The estimated fair value of interest rate capsied upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Interest Rate Swaps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate swajmged upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).

Other Real Estate Owned:

OREO are carried at fair value less selling coBte fair value is based on appraised value thr@ugbrrent appraisal, or sometimes through an iai
review, additionally adjusted by the estimated ststsell the property (Level 3 input).

Other Financial Instruments:

The fair values of commitments to sell, lend orrber are estimated using the fees currently chaogeqzhid to enter into similar agreements, takirtg
account the remaining terms of the agreements la@dtesent creditworthiness of the counterpartiesnothe estimated cost to terminate ther
otherwise settle with the counterparties at theomipy date. For fixedate loan commitments to sell, lend or borrow, featues also consider 1
difference between current levels of interest rates committed rates (where applicable).

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, thedhies of the above financial instruments apprate the recorded amounts of the related
and were not considered to be material.
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouautsi estimated fair values of selected financisfrimments based on the assumptions described
used by the Company in estimating fair value at&waper 30, 2014:

September 30, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 30,49¢ $ 30,49¢ $ 30,49¢ $ - % =
Mortgage-backed Securitie 696,20¢ 696,20¢ - 696,20¢ -
Other securitie 288,16¢ 288,16¢ - 262,09° 26,07
Loans held for sal 1,15(C 1,15(C - - 1,15(C
Loans 3,645,63 3,718,23! - - 3,718,23!
FHLB-NY stock 45,77¢ 45,77¢ - 45,77¢ -
Interest rate sway 174 174 - 174 -
OREO 5,79z 5,79z - - 5,79z
Total assets $ 4,713,40. $ 4,786,000 $ 30,49¢ $ 1,004,25¢ $ 3,751,25:
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,363,56! 3,377,46¢ $ 2,063,62 $ 1,313,83' $ -
Borrowings 1,031,63. 1,045,65: - 1,016,11: 29,53t
Interest rate swag 53t 53¢t - 53¢ -
Total liabilities $ 4,395,720 $ 4,423,65 $ 2,06362 $ 2,330,49. $ 29,53t
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouautsl estimated fair values of selected financisfriments based on the assumptions described
used by the Company in estimating fair value atddgmer 31, 2013:

December 31, 201

Carrying
Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 33,48 $ 33,48: $ 33,48: $ - $ =
Mortgage-backed Securitie 756,15¢ 756,15¢ - 756,15¢ -
Other securitie 261,63: 261,63: - 237,47¢ 24,15¢
Loans held for sal 42F 42F - - 42F
Loans 3,434,17: 3,502,79: - - 3,502,79:
FHLB-NY stock 46,02¢ 46,02¢ - 46,02¢ -
Interest rate cag - - - - -
Interest rate sway 2,081 2,081 - 2,081 -
OREO 2,98t 2,98t - - 2,98t
Total assets $ 4,536,960 $ 4,60558 $ 33,48 $ 1,041,73i $ 3,530,36!
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,232,780 $ 3,25326. $ 2,111,82' $ 1,141,431 $ =
Borrowings 1,012,12: 1,034,79 - 1,005,22! 29,57(
Total liabilities $ 4,24490. $ 4,288,060 $ 2,111,82' $ 2,146,66! $ 29,57(

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

At September 30, 2014, the Company’s derivativarfaial instruments consisted of interest rate swapmb at December 31, 2013, the Compsany’
derivative financial instruments consisted of pasdd options and interest rate swaps. The Compameéps are used to mitigate the Company’
exposure to rising interest rates on a portion (18illion) of its floating rate junior subordinatelebentures that have a contractual value of :
million. Additionally, the Company at times may us&erest rate swaps to mitigate the Company’s supoto rising interest rates on its fixed ratenfa

The purchased options, which expired during thedthuarter of 2014, were used to mitigate the Caomijzaexposure to rising interest rates o1
financial liabilities without stated maturities.

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 di@gatvith a combined notional amount of $18.0 milliand $118.0 million, respectively, were
designated as hedges. Derivatives with a combin&dmal amount of $11.0 million and $11.2 milliorere designated as fair value hedges at Sept
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Gimirgthe fair value of the derivatives not desigdaas hedges are reflected het gain/loss fror
fair value adjustmentsh the Consolidated Statements of Income. The o the change in the fair value of the derivatilesignated as a fair va
hedge which is considered ineffective are refleatedNet gain/loss from fair value adjustments’tive Consolidated Statements of Income.
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The following table sets forth information regamlithe Company’s derivative financial instrumentSaptember 30, 2014:

At or for the nine months ended September 30,

2014

Notional Purchase Net Carrying®

Amount Price Value

(In thousands

Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) $ 18,00( $ - 8 (352)
Interest rate swaps (hedc¢ 4,15:¢ - 174
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 6,88¢ - (183
Total derivatives $ 29,04. $ - 8 (361)

(1) Derivatives in a net positive position are meleal as “Other assets” and derivatives in a neatiegposition are recorded as “Other liabilitiés”
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condi

The following table sets forth information regamlithe Company’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2013:

At or for the year ended December 31, 2

Notional Purchase Net Carrying®
Amount Price Value
(In thousands
Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ 100,000 $ 9,03t $ =
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00¢( - 1,681
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 11,217 = 40C
Total derivatives $ 129,21 $ 9,03t $ 2,081

(1) Derivatives in a net positive position are meleal as “Other assets” and derivatives in a neatiegposition are recorded as “Other liabilitiés”
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condi

The following table sets forth the effect of detiva instruments on the Consolidated Statemenisaafime for the periods indicated:

For the three months ended  For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(
(In thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Financial Derivatives
Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ - $ ™ $ - $ (18)
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) (300) 565 (2,039 2,882
Interest rate swaps (hedge) (28) - (89 16
Net Gain (loss§V $ (329 $ 55¢ $ (2,129 $ 2,88(

(1) Netgains and (losses) are recorded as pNet loss from fair value adjustme” in the Consolidated Statements of Inco
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12. Income Taxes

Flushing Financial Corporation files consolidatextiEral and combined New York State and New Yorl {Ditome tax returns with its subsidiaries, \
the exception of Flushing Financial Capital TrustHlushing Financial Capital Trust Ill, and FlusgiFinancial Capital Trust IV, which file sepai
Federal income tax returns as trusts, and Flushieterred Funding Corporation, which files a sefgaFederal and New York State income tax retu
a real estate investment trust.

Income tax provisions are summarized as follows:
For the three months ended  For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(
(In thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Federal:
Current $ 5381 $ 4,67¢ $ 13,79¢ $ 12,69¢
Deferred (141) (85) 1,71¢ 18
Total federal tax provision 5,24( 4,59:¢ 15,51! 12,71;
State and Loca
Current 1,86¢ 1,46¢ 5,237 3,77¢
Deferred (49 (37) 837 8
Total state and local tax provision 1,82( 1,431 6,07¢ 3,781
Total income tax provision $ 7,060 $ 6,02¢ $ 21,58t $ 16,49¢

The effective tax rate was 38.7% and 39.0% fortltihee months ended September 30, 2014 and 20X ctasely, and 39.4% and 39.0% for the |
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, resplgctiv

The effective rates differ from the statutory fexléncome tax rate as follows:
For the three months ended Septer For the nine months ended September

30, 30,
(dollars in thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Taxes at federal statutory re $6,392 35.(% $5,40¢ 35.% $19,16¢ 35.0% $14,80¢ 35.(%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc
State and local income tax, net of Federal incaameéenefi 1,18: 6.5 93C 6.C 3,94¢ 7.2 2,45¢ 5.8
Other (515) (2.9 (312) (2.0) (1,539 (2.9) (76€) (1.9
Taxes at effective rate $7,06( 38.7% $6,02¢ 39.(% $21,58¢ 39.4% $16,49¢ 39.(%

The Company has recorded a deferred tax asset ®8 $8illion at September 30, 2014, which is incldide “Other assetsin the Consolidate
Statements of Financial Condition. This represémsanticipated net federal, state and local taefies expected to be realized in future years upe
utilization of the underlying tax attributes conging this balance. The Company has reported taxabdene for federal, state, and local tax purpads
each of the past three fiscal years. In managesi@minion, in view of the Compars/'previous, current and projected future earnimgadi th
probability that some of the Compary$19.2 million deferred tax liability can be ugedffset a portion of the deferred tax asset, e as certain te
planning strategies, it is more likely than nottttiee deferred tax asset will be fully realized cAddingly, no valuation allowance was deemed necyg
for the deferred tax asset at September 30, 2014.
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13.  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
The following table sets forth the changes in aadlated other comprehensive income by componenhnine months ended September 30, 2014:

Unrealized
Gains and
(Losses) on Defined
Available for Benefit
Sale Pension
Securities ltems Total
(In thousands
Beginning balance, net of tax $ (8,522) $ (2,859 $ (11,379
Other comprehensive income before reclassificatinesof tax 9,667 - 9,667
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmetve income, net of tax (2,979 242 (2,73%)
Net current period other comprehensive incomephtgx 6,68¢ 24¢ 6,93:
Ending balance, net of tax $ (1,839) $ (2,610 $ (4,447)

The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other comprehensieme by component for the three months e
September 30, 2014:

Amounts Reclassified frot

Details about Accumulated Oth Accumulated Othe Affected Line Item in the Stateme
Comprehensive Income Compone Comprehensive Incorr Where Net Income is Present
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized gains on available for sale securi  $ 5,21¢ Net gain on sale of securiti
(2,239 Tax expense
$ 2,97¢ Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten
Actuarial losse: $ (175)(1) Other expens
Prior service credits 12(1) Other expense
(16%)  Total before ta
71 Tax benefit
$ (92 Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income caenpoare included in the computation of net pedqdinsion cost (See Note 9 of the Note
Consolidated Financial Stateme"Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F’.)
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The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisis@me by component for the three months ended
September 30, 2013:

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensivenounts Reclassified from Accumulated Ot Affected Line Item in the Statement Where Net
Income Componeni Comprehensive Incorr Income is Presente
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized gains on available for sale securi  $ 96 Net gain on sale of securiti
(42) Tax expense
$ 54 Net of tax
OTTI charges $ (91€) OTTI charge
40C Tax benefit
$ (51€)  Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten
Actuarial losse! $ (309)(1) Other expens
Prior service credits 11(1) Other expense
(29¢)  Total before tas
13C Tax benefit
$ (16%) Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income caenpoare included in the computation of net pedgdinsion cost (See Note 9 of the Note
Consolidated Financial Stateme"Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F.)

The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other comprehenisiweme by component for the nine months el
September 30, 2014:

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensivenounts Reclassified from Accumulated Ot Affected Line Item in the Statement Where Net
Income Componeni Comprehensive Incorr Income is Presente
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized gains on available for sale securi $ 5,21¢ Net gain on sale of securiti
(2,239 Tax expense
$ 2,97¢ Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten
Actuarial losse! $ (525)(1) Other expens
Prior service credits 34(1) Other expense
(491)  Total before ta
24¢ Tax benefit
$ (243)  Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income caenpoare included in the computation of net pedqdinsion cost (See Note 9 of the Note
Consolidated Financial Stateme"Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F’.)
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The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other comprehenisiweme by component for the nine months el
September 30, 2013:

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensivenounts Reclassified from Accumulated Ot Affected Line Item in the Statement Where Net
Income Componeni Comprehensive Incorr Income is Presente
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized gains on available for sale securi $ 2,97 Net gain on sale of securiti
(1,299 Tax expense

$ 1,67 Net of tax

OTTI charges $ (1,419 OTTI charge
62C Tax benefit
$ (7999  Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten

Actuarial losse! $ (927)(1) Other expens

Prior service credits 33(1) Other expense
(894  Total before tas
391 Tax benefit

$ (50%) Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income caenpoare included in the computation of net pedgdinsion cost (See Note 9 of the Note
Consolidated Financial Stateme“Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F.)

-44-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

14.  Regulatory Capital

Under current capital regulations, the Bank is negiito comply with three separate capital adequsandards. As of September 30, 2014, the
continues to be categorized as “well-capitalizedider the prompt corrective action regulations &odtinues to exceed all regulatory caj
requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Bank’s comg@with banking regulatory capital standards.

(Dollars in thousands Amount  Percent of Asse

Tier | (leverage) capital:

Capital leve $ 466,47 9.62%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 242,48! 5.0C

Exces: 223,99( 4.62
Tier | risk -based capital:

Capital leve $ 466,47 14.3"%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 194,73( 6.0C

Exces: 271,74% 8.37
Total risk-based capital:

Capital leve $ 494,81 15.25%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 324,54¢ 10.0¢

Exces: 170,27( 5.2F

The Holding Company is subject to the same regulatapital requirements as the Bank. As of Septerbe2014, the Holding Company continue
be categorized as “well-capitalized” under the ppbrorrective action regulations and continuesxteed all regulatory capital requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Holding Compsuepmpliance with banking regulatory capital stars.

(Dollars in thousands Amount  Percent of Asse

Tier | (leverage) capital:

Capital leve $ 469,67( 9.7(%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 242,19( 5.0C

Exces: 227,48( 4.7
Tier | risk -based capital:

Capital leve $ 469,67( 14.5(%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 194,37: 6.0C

Exces: 275,29 8.5(C
Total risk-based capital:

Capital leve $ 498,01 15.37%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 323,95¢ 10.0¢

Exces: 174,05¢ 5.31
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15.  New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2@¥4to clarify that when an in substance repossesmioforeclosure occurs, a creditor is consideockdave
received physical possession of residential reat@property collateralizing a consumer mortgagan] upon either (1) the creditor obtaining legd
to the residential real estate property upon cotigpleof a foreclosure or (2) the borrower conveyaiginterest in the residential real estate propt
the creditor to satisfy that loan through completad a deed in lieu of foreclosure or through aikimegal agreement. Additionally, the amendm
require interim and annual disclosure of both {1 amount of foreclosed residential real estateeny held by the creditor and (2) the recol
investment in consumer mortgage loans collaterdlizg residential real estate property that arehi@ process of foreclosure according to |
requirements of the applicable jurisdiction. ASQIL2-04 is effective for annual reporting periods begigrafter December 15, 2014. Adoption of
update is not expected to have a material effetherCompany’s consolidated results of operatiarf;iancial condition.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2009-which provides new guidance that supersedesetrenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic

Revenue Recognitic. The guidance requires an entity to recognize megeto depict the transfer of promised goods ovises to customers in

amount that reflects the consideration to whichabmpany expects to be entitled in exchange fosdlgnods or services. This guidance is effectiv
interim and annual reporting periods beginningrallecember 15, 2016. We are currently evaluatirgithpact of adopting this new guidance on
consolidated results of operations and financiabéion.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-11 whichredsehe authoritative accounting guidance under A8gic 860 “Transfers and Servicingrhe
amendments require two accounting changes. Histatnendments change the accounting for repurdbaseturity transactions to secured borrov
accounting. Second, for repurchase financing amampts, the amendments require separate accoubtirg) transfer of a financial asset exec
contemporaneously with a repurchase agreement twéhsame counterparty, which will result in secubedrowing accounting for the repurch
agreement. The amendments also require additioselodures regarding repurchase agreements. Thedmneats are effective for the first interin
annual period beginning after December 15, 2014ti€n are required to present changes in accogitintransactions outstanding on the effective
as a cumulativeffect adjustment to retained earnings as of ttginipéng of the period of adoption. Early adoptianprohibited. The amendme
regarding disclosures for certain transactions actm for as a sale are required to be presentadtésim and annual periods beginning after Decer
15, 2014, and the disclosure for repurchase agnmesmeecurities lending transactions, and repussh@maturity transactions accounted for as sec
borrowings are required to be presented for anpegbds beginning after December 15, 2014, andnferim periods beginning after March 15, 2(
The disclosures are not required to be presenteddimparative periods before the effective date. ahéecurrently evaluating the impact of adog
these amendments on our consolidated results o&tipes and financial condition.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-14 whichenads the authoritative accounting guidance und8C ATopic 310 “Receivables.The
amendments require that a mortgage loan be derzemband that a separate other receivable be rezjuopon foreclosure if the follow conditions
met: (1) the loan has a government guarantee shabti separable from the loan before foreclosieAf the time of foreclosure, the creditor has
intent to convey the real estate property to thergotor and make claim on the guarantee, and #ubter has the ability to recover under that claing
(3) at the time of foreclosure, any amount of thane that is determined on the basis of the falugeof real estate is fixed. Upon foreclosure,
separate other receivable should be measured lmsé¢de amount of the loan balance (principal artdrést) expected to be recovered from
guarantor. The amendments are effective for anperabds, and interim periods within those annuaiqas, beginning after December 15, 2014. En
should adopt the amendments in this Update usihgred prospective transition method or a modifigdospective transition method. Adoption of
update is not expected to have a material effetherCompany’s consolidated results of operatiarf;iancial condition.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Quarterly Report should be read in conjunctigth the more detailed and comprehensive discesimcluded in our Annual Report on Form KO-
for the year ended December 31, 2013. In additease read this section in conjunction with oum&alidated Financial Statements and Note
Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein.

”ow " ou

As used in this Quarterly Report, the wo“we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiand its direc
and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, FlushingnR4the “Bank”), Flushing Preferred Funding Corporation, Flushingree Corporation, and FS
Properties Inc

Statements contained in this Quarterly Reportirgab plans, strategies, objectives, economicquerénce and trends, projections of results of $io
activities or investments and other statements d@inatnot descriptions of historical facts may bevfrdlooking statements within the meaninc
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Srcf1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Fewddooking information is inherently subject
risks and uncertainties and actual results couferdinaterially from those currently anticipatededio a number of factors, which include, but art
limited to, factors discussed elsewhere in this @uly Report and in other documents filed by uthwhe Securities and Exchange Commission
time to time, including, without limitation, our Amal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecerBlhe2013. Forwardboking statements may
identified by terms such as “may,” “will,” “shoultficould,” “expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “anticipges,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “foredss’
“potential” or “continue” or similar terms or theegative of these terms. Although we believe that ékpectations reflected in the forwaotdking
statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee fesults, levels of activity, performance or avkiments. We have no obligation to update 1
forward-looking statements.

Executive Summary

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 19%% Bank was organized in 1929 as a New YorkeSfiaartered mutual savings bank. In 1¢
the Bank converted to a federally chartered mutagings bank and changed its name from Flushingh§sBank to Flushing Savings Bank, FSB.
Bank converted from a federally chartered mutuairggs bank to a federally chartered stock saviraggkton November 21, 1995, at which time Flus
Financial Corporation acquired all of the stocktleé Bank. On February 28, 2013, the Bank’s chavt&s changed to a fulervice New York Sta
chartered commercial bank, and its name was chatgé&dushing Bank. On July 21, 2011, as a resulthef DoddFrank Wall Street Reform a
Consumer Protection Act, the Bank’s primary reguidiecame the Office of the Comptroller of the @any and Flushing Financial Corporatien’
primary regulator became the Federal Reserve Bala@bvernors. As a result of the Bank’s changeharter to a fullservice New York State charte
commercial bank, the Bar&’primary regulator became the New York State Digpamt of Financial Services (formerly, the New Y@&@tate Bankin
Department), and its primary federal regulator bezaghe Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FRIOeposits are insured to the maxinm
allowable amount by the FDIC. Additionally, the Bais a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank sys#lso in connection with the Merg
Flushing Financial Corporation became a bank hgldiompany. The primary business of Flushing Fireln€brporation has been the operation o
Bank. The Bank owns three subsidiaries: FlushirefdPred Funding Corporation, Flushing Service Caapion, and FSB Properties Inc. In Noven
2006, the Bank launched an internet branch, iGObgmtom® . The activities of Flushing Financial Corporatiom grimarily funded by dividends,
any, received from the Bank, issuances of junitmosdinated debt, and issuances of equity securfieshing Financial Corporatiom’common stock
traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market undersymabol “FFIC.”

Our principal business is attracting retail dem$ibm consumers, businesses and public entitigsimresting those deposits together with f
generated from ongoing operations and borrowingmarily in (1) originations and purchases of mdiftinily residential loans and, to a lesser ex
one-to-four family loans (focusing on mixede properties, which are properties that contath besidential dwelling units and commercial unéac
commercial real estate mortgage loans; (2) consbrudoans, primarily for residential propertie8) Small Business Administration (“SBAIpans an
other small business loans; (4) mortgage loan gates such as mortgage-backed securities; and.§)ddvernment securities, corporate fixedeme
securities and other marketable securities. We algpnate certain other consumer loans includingrdraft lines of credit. Our results of operati
depend primarily on net interest income, whichhis tifference between the income earned on itsestearning assets and the cost of our interest
bearing liabilities. Net interest income is theulesf our interest rate margin, which is the diéfece between the average yield earned on inteegstn(
assets and the average cost of interest-bearibijtles, adjusted for the difference in the averdmalance of interestarning assets as compared tc
average balance of interest-bearing liabilities. W&o generate nonterest income from loan fees, service chargesigposit accounts, mortge
servicing fees, and other fees, income earned ek Bavned Life Insurance (“BOLI"), dividends on FedeHome Bank of New York (“FHLB-NYY
stock and net gains and losses on sales of sesudtid loans. Our operating expenses consist pailhciof employee compensation and bene
occupancy and equipment costs, other general amihadrative expenses and income tax expense. €uits of operations also can be significe
affected by our periodic provision for loan losses specific provision for losses on real estataeny
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Our strategy is to continue our focus on beingratitution serving consumers, businesses, and gmetal entities in our local markets. In furthe@n
of this objective, we intend to:

e continue our emphasis on the origination of mutifly residential mortgage loans;

e continue to transition our balance sheet to a fam@mercial-like’ banking institution;

e increase our commitment to the multi-cultural mgpkece, with a particular focus on the Asian comityim Queens;
e maintain asset quality;

e manage deposit growth and maintain a low costd$uthrough
= business banking deposits,
= municipal deposits through government banking, and
= new customer relationships via iGObanking.com®;

e cross sell to lending and deposit customers;
e take advantage of market disruptions to attraenteand customers from competitors;
e manage interest rate risk and capital: and

e manage enterprise-wide risk.

There can be no assurance that we will be abléeotvely implement this strategy. Our strategygigject to change by the Board of Directors.

Our investment policy, which is approved by the Bloaf Directors, is designed primarily to manage ithiterest rate sensitivity of our overall asseid
liabilities, to generate a favorable return withowdurring undue interest rate risk and credit, riskcomplement our lending activities and to pdevan:
maintain liquidity. In establishing our investmesttategies, we consider our business and growakegies, the economic environment, our intereg
risk exposure, our interest rate sensitivity “gg@osition, the types of securities to be held arteofactors. We classify our investment securisie
available for sale.

We carry a portion of our financial assets andrfaial liabilities at fair value and record changegheir fair value through earnings in norieres
income on our Consolidated Statements of Income Gomiprehensive Income. A description of the finaheissets and financial liabilities that
carried at fair value through earnings can be fanridote 10 of the Notes to the Consolidated Fiierétatements.

The Bank continues to maintain conservative undéngrstandards that include, among other thingkaa-tovalue ratio of 75% or less and a ¢
coverage ratio of at least 125%. Multi-family remitial, commercial real estate and one-to-four ammixed-use property mortgage loans origin:
during the third quarter of 2014 had an average-toavalue ratio of 42.8% and an average debt @geratio of 258%.

The continued improvement in credit quality allowesito reduce our provision for loan losses forttiied consecutive quarter. The benefit for |
losses was $0.6 million for the third quarter ofi2Gnd $1.1 million for each of the first two quast of 2014, all of which are improvements ovel
provision for loan losses of $1.0 million recordiating the fourth quarter of 2013. We continuedée reductions in delinquent loans, marforming
loans, and classified assets. As compared to fbe quarter, loans delinquent over 30 days decoe&gded million, or 5.3%, during the third quartd
2014 to $77.6 million and non-accrual loans ded&8.3 million, or 19.4%, during the third quadé2014 to $34.5 million.
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Net charg-offs for the three months ended September 30, 26tkded $0.3 million. We continued our practiceadiftaining updated appraisals .
recording chargeffs based on these current values as opposediiogatd the allowance for loan losses. This protessensured that we have kept |
with changing values in the real estate market. @verage loan-to-value ratio for our nperforming loans collateralized by real estate B@8% a
September 30, 2014.

Loans, net for the nine months ended Septembe2@®D} grew 8.4% from December 31, 2013. Loan origpna for the recent quarter totaled $2-
million, a 29.8% increase from loan originationgidg the second quarter of 2014, as we begin tocceagibutions from additional loan officers hi
during 2014. Growth was primarily in commerciallregtate mortgage loans and commercial business./dde origination and purchase of comme
real estate loans during the third quarter of 2044 $68.9 million, or 27.8% of all loan originat®ras our strategic plan included reentering trasket
Loan applications in process dipped slightly fromeeord high of $364.3 million at June 30, 2014, femain strong totaling $323.0 million at Septen
30, 2014. The mix of our loans has improved asbusiness banking operation contributed 35.7% of yealate originations. This business ban
portion of our loan portfolio has continued to grqwoviding us with additional variable rate loandock in spreads in a potentially rising interesste
environment. Combining the growth in business bagkioans with our reentry into the commercial reatate market allowed us to be n
discriminating in our acceptance of more liberatipg and terms in the multi-family residential rket.

Our net interest margin for the three months er8egtember 30, 2014 was 2.77%, a decrease of 4% paisits from the three months ended Jun
2014. Excluding the prepayment penalty incurre@ assult of the balance sheet deleveraging, asigisd below, our net interest margin would |
been 3.22%, the same as recorded during the thoe¢hmended June 30, 2014. During the third quaft@014, a six basis point decrease in the
earned from interest-earning assets to 4.27% waetdfy a seven basis point decrease in the cdsteykstbearing liabilities to 1.16%. The decline
the yield of interesearning assets was primarily due to the curreptést rate environment, where new loans and sexudite added at rates well be
our portfolio average yield, and higher yieldingihs and securities are prepaying. The decreabe icost of interedvearing liabilities was primarily di
to decreases of 27 basis points and 13 basis paitii® cost of certificates of deposit and borrdvitends, respectively, partially offset by increasd
seven basis points in the cost of money marketwdspand one basis point in the cost of savingsN@W accounts, respectively. The yield ea
during the three months ended September 30, 20%4pandially supported by additional interest cabecon loans which were previously nacerua
and back payments were received. During the thidi second quarters of 2014, the yield included $@ilBon and $0.4 million in additional intere
collected from non-accrual loans, respectively. l&ging this additional interest collected from naccrual loans and the prepayment penalt
borrowings, the net interest margin would haveeéased two basis points to 3.20% for the three nsoatided September 30, 2014 from 3.18% fo
three months ended June 30, 2014. Further exclupiegayment penalty income, the net interest mavgas 3.07% for the three months er
September 30, 2014 and June 30, 2014, respectively.

At September 30, 2014, the Bank continues to béweglitalized under regulatory requirements, withré& Tier 1 risk-based and Total ribksed capiti
ratios of 9.62%, 14.37% and 15.25%, respectivetySéptember 30, 2014, the Company’s capital rdtio€ore, Tier 1 risk-based and Total risise:
capital ratios were 9.70%, 14.50% and 15.37%, ctipsdy.

COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE THREE MONTH S ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013
General. Net income for the three months ended Septembe2®} was $11.2 million, an increase of $1.8 millior 18.9%, compared to $9.4 mill

for the three months ended September 30, 2013tedilearnings per common share were $0.38 for thee tmonths ended September 30, 201
increase of $0.06, or 18.8%, from $0.32 for the¢hmonths ended September 30, 2013.

Return on average equity increased to 9.9% fotttree months ended September 30, 2014 from 8.9%héothree months ended September 30, :
Return on average assets increased to 0.9% fohithe months ended September 30, 2014 from 0.8%héathree months ended September 30, 2013.
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Balance Sheet Deleveraging. During three months ended September 30, 2014, $88i6n in mortgagehacked securities at an average yield of 3.
and $10.2 million in corporate securities at anrage yield of 2.07% were sold realizing a net gainsale of $5.2 million. The proceeds from the
were used to prepay $66.9 million in long-term FHNB advances at an average cost of 2.98% and $30liormn repurchase agreements al
average cost of 4.98% while incurring a prepaynpemalty totaling $5.2 million. The balance shedéderage had a minimal effect on the current p«
net income, but decreased net interest income by &#llion and increased ndnterest income by $5.2 million. The balance sh#sdeverage
projected to increase our net interest margin inr&iperiods.

Interest Income. Total interest and dividend income decreased $0liom or 1.4%, to $49.2 million for the three mbs ended September 30, 2
from $49.9 million for the three months ended Settter 30, 2013. The decrease in interest incomeatteibutable to a 29 basis point decline in
yield of interestearning assets to 4.27% for the three months eSdptember 30, 2014 from 4.56% in the comparabte ggar period, partially offs
by the effect of an increase of $235.7 millionfie average balance of interestrning assets to $4,607.0 million for the threentin® ended Septeml
30, 2014 from $4,371.3 million for the comparabiimpyear period. The 29 basis point decline inyledd of interestearning assets was primarily du
a 39 basis point reduction in the yield of the lttdans, net to 4.79% for the three months endqute®eber 30, 2014 from 5.18% for the three mc
ended September 30, 2013, combined with a 21 pagis decline in the yield on total securities t6&26 for the three months ended September 30,
from 2.77% for the comparable prior year periode B® basis point decrease in the yield of totah$oamet was primarily due to the decline in thes
earned on new loan originations, existing loans ifgyoy to lower rates, and higher yielding loangpaying. The yield on total loans, net, exclu
prepayment penalty income, decreased 40 basisspoirt.62% for the three months ended Septembe2@@} from 5.02% for the three months er
September 30, 2013. The 21 basis point decreabe ield of total securities was primarily duethie purchase of new securities at lower yields the
existing portfolio and the sale of $95.2 millionsecurities at an average yield of 3.49%, which fEgher yield than the existing portfolio, duritit
three months ended September 30, 2014, as pdm dlalance sheet deleverage discussed above.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $4.4 million, or 33.@8417.2 million for the three months ended Sep&nd®, 2014 from $12.9 millic
for the three months ended September 30, 2013.ifMdrease in interest expense was primarily duentanarease of 194 basis points in the co:
borrowed funds to 4.00% for the three months erfsieptember 30, 2014 from 2.06% for the comparabite gear period. The increase in the cos
borrowed funds was primarily due to the $5.2 milljsrepayment penalty on borrowings recorded dutiegthree months ended September 30, 20:
a result of the balance sheet deleveraging disdusiseve, partially offset by maturing borrowingsngereplaced at lower rates and the positive efté
prepaying $66.9 million in long-term FHLRY advances at an average cost of 2.98% and $3illibrmin repurchase agreements at an averageat
4.98%, as part of the balance sheet deleveragimg.ificrease in interest expense was partiallyedty a decrease of 12 basis points in the codteftc
depositors to 0.93% for the three months endedeSdr 30, 2014 from 1.05% for the comparable préar period. The decrease in the cost of d
depositors was primarily due to the Bank reducimg ftates it pays on its deposit products, as tis¢ @ocertificates of deposit and NOW acco!
decreased 23 basis points and eight basis poegpectively, partially offset by a 15 basis pomtrease in the cost of money market accounts &
three months ended September 30, 2014 from the a@bie prior year period. The cost was also paditiaffected by a movement in dep
concentrations as the average balance of loweingosbre deposits increased $103.0 million during three months ended September 30, 20
$1,862.5 million from $1,759.5 million for the commable prior year period, partially offset by awrigase of $67.1 million in the average balanc
higher costing certificates of deposit to $1,258illion for the three months ended September 3@420om $1,191.6 million for the comparable p
year period.

Net I nterest Income. For the three months ended September 30, 2014nteetst income was $32.0 million, a decrease dd #fillion, or 13.6%, fror
$37.0 million for the three months ended Septen@itr2013. The decrease in net interest income wiasaply attributable to the $5.2 millic
prepayment penalty recorded on borrowings durirgtkiiee months ended September 30, 2014 as a oéddtance sheet deleveraging, as disct
above. This decrease in net interest income watialharoffset by an increase of $235.7 million inet average balance of interestning assets
$4,607.0 million for the three months ended Sep&m30, 2014 from $4,371.3 million for the compaeaptior year period. The yield on interestrning
assets decreased 29 basis points to 4.27% fohtae months ended September 30, 2014 from 4.56%hdothree months ended September 30, :
while the cost of interegdiearing liabilities increased 37 basis points ®6% for the three months ended September 30, 2@id 1.29% for th
comparable prior year period. The net interest madgclined 61 basis points to 2.77% for the thremths ended September 30, 2014 from 3.38¢
the three months ended September 30, 2013. Exdymtgpayment penalty income on loans and the preealypenalty recorded on borrowings, the
interest margin decreased 16 basis points to 3fb@%he three months ended September 30, 2014 3@6% for the three months ended Septembe
2013.
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Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses decreased $4.1 miltiaring the three months ended September 30, @0&%enefit of $0.
million from a provision of $3.4 million during theomparable prior year period. The decrease inptoeision was primarily due to the contini
improvement in credit conditions. During the thraenths ended September 30, 2014, aocrual loans decreased $25.3 million to $34.5ionilfrom
$59.9 million at September 30, 2013 and net chaftecontinued to be minimal at $0.3 million, orék basis points of average loans. The cL
average loan-to-value ratio for our nparforming loans collateralized by real estate W8s3% at September 30, 2014. When we have obi
properties through foreclosure, we have been abtpiickly sell the properties at amounts that apipnate book value. The Bank continues to mair
conservative underwriting standards. We anticipaa we will continue to see low loss content im lman portfolio. As a result of the quarterly ared
of the allowance for loans losses, a reductiorhndllowance was warranted, and as such, the Compaarded a benefit of $0.6 million for the tt
months ended September 30, 2014. See ““ALLOWANCR EQAN LOSSES.”

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income for the three months ended Septe®®e2014 was $7.1 million, an increase of $6.Hioni from $0.¢
million for the three months ended September 3@32The increase in ndnterest income was primarily due to the $5.2 mwillnet gain from the st
of mortgagebacked securities during the three months endede®der 30, 2014, as part of the balance sheet elelgivmg previously discuss
Additionally, noninterest income increased over the comparable ygar period due to a $0.4 million increase in liaglservice fee income, and
improvement in other-than-temporary impairment (07) charges, as there were no OTTI charges recordedgdilre three months ended Septer
30, 2014, but the comparable prior year perioduidet! an OTTI charge of $0.9 million on private sswllateralized mortgage obligations (“CMQ®s”
These improvements were partially offset by a $fifion increase in net losses from fair value atijoents during the three months ended Septe
30, 2014 as compared to the three months endedr8ket 30, 2013.

Non-Interest Expense. Non-nterest expense was $21.4 million for the threetim® ended September 30, 2014, an increase ofr§iflidn, or 12.5%
from $19.1 million for the three months ended Sefiter 30, 2013. The increase was primarily due ¢eeimses of $1.4 million in salaries and empl
benefits, $0.5 million in other operating expenses] $0.4 million in professional services. Thecghcy ratio was 54.1% for the three months e|
September 30, 2014 compared to 49.2% for the thierehs ended September 30, 2013.

Income before Income Taxes. Income before the provision for income taxes inseela$2.8 million, or 18.2%, to $18.3 million foretlithree montt
ended September 30, 2014 from $15.4 million forttiree months ended September 30, 2013 for themsaliscussed above.

Provision for Income Taxes. Income tax expense increased $1.0 million, or 172%%7.1 million for the three months ended Sejen30, 2014 fro
$6.0 million for the three months ended Septemifer2®13, primarily due to the increase in incoméoleeincome taxes as discussed above.
effective tax rate was 38.7% and 39.0% for theghmenths ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, rasghect

COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

General. Net income for the nine months ended Septembe2@®D4 was $33.2 million, an increase of $7.4 million28.6%, compared to $25.8 mill
for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. é&il@arnings per common share were $1.11 for the mionths ended September 30, 201«
increase of $0.25, or 29.1%, from $0.86 for theenimonths ended September 30, 2013.

Return on average equity increased to 9.9% fonthe months ended September 30, 2014, from 7.9%h&comparable prior year period. Retun
average assets increased to 0.9% for the nine mentted September 30, 2014, from 0.8% for the coabpaprior year period.
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Interest Income. Total interest and dividend income decreased $2l®m or 1.5%, to $148.0 million for the nine mitvs ended September 30, 2
from $150.2 million for the nine months ended Sefter 30, 2013. The decrease in interest incomeattebutable to a 36 basis point decline in
yield of interestearning assets to 4.33% for the nine months endpte®iber 30, 2014 from 4.69% in the comparabler year period. The decreass
the yield was partially offset by the effect of 289.2 million increase in the average balance fréstearning assets to $4,557.7 million for the

months ended September 30, 2014 from $4,268.50miftir the comparable prior year period. The 3@spsint decline in the yield of interesrning
assets was primarily due to a 44 basis point réoluat the yield of total loans, net to 4.87% fbetnine months ended September 30, 2014 from £
for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, cwdhivith a 23 basis point reduction in the yieldtotal securities to 2.66% for the nine mol
ended September 30, 2014 from 2.89% for the corbfmprior year period. The yield of interesdrning assets was positively impacted by a $.
million increase in the average balance of the diigtelding total loans, net for the nine monthdesh September 30, 2014, which was partially otbs
a $28.3 million increase in the average balanctheflower yielding securities portfolio for the rimmonths ended September 30, 2014. The 44
point decrease in the yield of the loan portfoliasaprimarily due to a decline in the rates earnedew loan originations, existing loans modifyirm
lower rates, and higher yielding loans prepayinge 23 basis point decrease in the yield of ther#tezsiportfolio was primarily due to the purchas
new securities at lower yields than the existingtfpbo and the sale of $95.2 million in securitiasan average yield of 3.49%, which is a higheid
than the existing portfolio, during the nine monémsled September 30, 2014, as part of the baldwest deleverage discussed above.

Interest Expense . Interest expense increased $0.9 million, or 2.9%442.7 million for the nine months ended Septen8D, 2014 from $41.8 millic
for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. fitrease in interest expense was primarily due tinerease of 17 basis points in the cos
borrowed funds to 2.69% for the nine months endepkeSnber 30, 2014 from 2.52% for the comparablerpréar period. The increase in the co
borrowed funds was primarily due to the $5.2 millgrepayment penalty on borrowings recorded dutiegnine months ended September 30, 2014
result of the balance sheet deleveraging discuaslsede. This increase was partially offset by a $Rilion prepayment penalty recorded on borrow
during the comparable prior year period, maturing®wvings being replaced at lower rates duringrtime months ended September 30, 2014, ar
positive effect of prepaying $66.9 million in longrm FHLBNY advances at an average cost of 2.98% and $3liomin repurchase agreements a
average cost of 4.98%, as part of the balance steeteraging. Additionally, the increase in instrexpense was partially offset by a 13 basis
decrease in the cost of due to depositors duestufting of deposit concentrations, as higher cagtiertificates of deposits average balance deet
$13.0 million to $1,174.4 million, while lower casy core deposits average balance increased $188i68n to $1,909.5 million for the nine mont
ended September 30, 2013 and the Bank reducin@gtég it pays on its deposit products. The cosedificates of deposit, savings accounts and I
accounts decreased 14 basis points, one basis poihteight basis points, respectively, partiaffiget by an increase of 10 basis points in the of
money market accounts for the nine months endete®dyer 30, 2014 from the comparable prior yearogeri

Net I nterest Income . For the nine months ended September 30, 2014nteeest income was $105.3 million, a decreas30? million, or 2.9%, fror
$108.4 million for the nine months ended Septenf&r 2013. The decrease in net interest income wiasaply attributable to the $5.2 millic
prepayment penalty on borrowings recorded duriegnine months ended September 30, 2014 as patvaibace sheet deleveraging, partially offse
a $2.6 million prepayment penalty on borrowingsoreed in the comparable prior year period. Thisrel@se in net interest income was partially o
by an increase of $289.2 million in the averagebed of intereseéarning assets to $4,557.7 million for the nine therended September 30, 2014 f
$4,268.5 million for the comparable prior year pdriThe yield on interesiarning assets decreased 36 basis points to 4.&38ef nine months end
September 30, 2014 from 4.69% for the nine montided September 30, 2013, while the cost of intdyeating liabilities decreased five basis poin
1.38% for the nine months ended September 30, 01 1.43% for the comparable prior year periode Tiet interest margin declined 31 basis p
to 3.08% for the nine months ended September 304 2®m 3.39% for the nine months ended SeptemBe2313. Excluding prepayment pen
income on loans and the prepayment penalty recavddabrrowings in both periods, the net interestgimadecreased 24 basis points to 3.11% fo
nine months ended September 30, 2014 from 3.35%éonine months ended September 30, 2013.
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Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses decreased $15.8anilluring the nine months ended September 30, 20asbenefit of $2.
million from a provision of $12.9 million during ¢hcomparable prior year period. During the nine therended September 30, 2014, penforming
loans decreased $13.3 million to $35.7 million fr§4®.0 million at December 31, 2013. Net chaoffe-for the nine months ended September 30,
totaled $0.6 million, or two basis points of averdgans. The current loan-to-value ratio for oun-performing loans collateralized by real estate
50.3% at September 30, 2014. When we have obtagirmaerties through foreclosure, we have been abtgiickly sell the properties at amounts
approximate book value. We anticipate that we w@alhtinue to see low loss content in our loan ptidfarhe Bank continues to maintain conserve
underwriting standards. As a result of the quartarlalysis of the allowance for loans losses, acgon in the allowance was warranted, and as dhe
Company recorded a benefit of $2.8 million for thiee months ended September 30, 2014. See ““ALLOWENOR LOAN LOSSES.”

Non-Interest Income . Non-nterest income for the nine months ended SepteB®e2014 was $10.8 million, an increase of $2.Boni or 27.4%, fron
$8.5 million for the nine months ended September2BA3. The increase in namterest income was primarily due to the $5.2 mwillnet gain from sa

of mortgage-backed securities during the nine noetided September 30, 2014, partially offset b.8 #illion net gain from the sale of mortgage-
backed securities during the nine months endede8dy@r 30, 2013. Noimterest income also increased due to an improvemedTTI charges as the
were no OTTI charges recorded during the nine nwattded September 30, 2014, but the comparabley@a@o period included an OTTI charge of ¢
million on private issue CMOs. These improvemen&enpartially offset by a $0.9 million increaseriat losses from fair value adjustments a
decrease of $0.3 million in banking service fees.

Non-Interest Expense. Non-interest expense was $64.2 million for the nine theended September 30, 2014, an increase of $Ri@nmor 4.0%, fron
$61.7 million for the nine months ended Septemiier2B13. The increase was primarily due to incre@$&2.8 million in salaries and benefits expt
primarily due to annual salary increases, and arease in the cost of grants of annual restrictecksunit awards, and $0.5 million in other operg
expenses. These increases were partially offsdebgeases of $0.3 million and $0.6 million in FDiSurance expense and real estate owned/forec
expense, respectively. The efficiency ratio wad%dfor the nine months ended September 30, 2014amd to 51.9% for the nine months er
September 30, 2013.

Income before Income Taxes . Income before the provision for income taxes inseea$12.5 million, or 29.5%, to $54.8 million fdretnine montt
ended September 30, 2014 from $42.3 million forrtime months ended September 30, 2013 for the meatiscussed above.

Provision for Income Taxes . Income tax expense increased $5.1 million to $2il6on for the nine months ended September 30,42Bém $16.!
million for the nine months ended September 30320he increase was primarily due to a $12.5 nmiliiecrease in income before income taxes to ¢
million for the nine months ended September 30,420&m $42.3 million for the comparable prior ygmriod. The effective tax rate was 39.4%
39.0% for the nine months ended September 30, 20842013, respectively. The increase in the effedtx rate was primarily due to the impac
changes to the New York State tax code passed anhVed, 2014, resulting in a reduction in the Comps deferred tax assets. We expect to ¢
small reduction in our effective tax rate beginnin@015 as a result of the changes in the New Btdte tax code.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets. Total assets at September 30, 2014 were $4,892i@rman increase of $170.5 million, or 3.6%, fr&4,721.5 million at December 31, 20
Total loans, net increased $214.9 million during thne months ended September 30, 2014 to $3,61ii8n from $3,402.4 million at December
2013. Loan originations and purchases were $637ll®mfor the nine months ended September 30, 2@Hincrease of $2.1 million from $63
million for the nine months ended September 30,32@uring the nine months ended September 30, 20&4;ontinued to focus on the originatior
multi-family residential and business loans with a felationship and have recently increased our comalemortgage lending, as our strategic |
includes reentering this market. Loan applicationgrocess have continued to remain strong, t@B23.0 million at September 30, 2014 compar
$297.5 million at December 31, 2013 and $262.2ionlat September 30, 2013.
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The following table shows loan originations andghases for the periods indicated:
For the three months ended  For the nine months ended

September 3( September 3(

(In thousands 2014 2013 2014 2013
Multi-family residentia $ 79,75 $  127,31( $ 244,76: $  302,52°
Commercial real esta(® 68,87" 14,18( 100,49t 52,77¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use property 13,93¢ 10,71¢ 32,36¢ 22,45:
One-to-four family — residential 5,42¢ 7,98¢ 20,93( 20,87¢
Cc-operative apartmen - 1,037 - 4,79¢
Constructior 404 162 1,401 1,951
Small Business Administratic 49¢ 92 1,077 47C
Taxi Medallion® 897 - 14,43: -
Commercial business and other 78,38 100,66 221,88 229,36!

Total $ 248,17 $ 262,15. $ 637,34 $ 635,21¢

(1) Includes purchases of $10.0 million for theethend nine months ended September 30, 2014 ahdr#ilon for the nine months ended September
30, 2013

(2) Includes purchases of $0.9 million and $13.8 millfor the three and nine months ended Septemb&03@, respectively

The Bank continues to maintain conservative undéngrstandards that include, among other thingkaa-tovalue ratio of 75% or less and a ¢
coverage ratio of at least 125%. Multi-family remitial, commercial real estate and one-to-four ammixed-use property mortgage loans origin:
during the third quarter of 2014 had an average-toavalue ratio of 42.8% and an average debt @mesratio of 258%.

The Bank’s norperforming assets totaled $41.5 million at Septan¥e 2014, a decrease of $12.4 million from $58i8ion at December 31, 201
Total nonperforming assets as a percentage of total assrts W85% at September 30, 2014 compared to 1.1DBe@mber 31, 2013. The ratic
allowance for loan losses to total non-performiogns was 79.5% at September 30, 2014 and 64.9%caniber 31, 2013. See FROUBLED DEBT
RESTRUCUTURED AND NON-PERFORMING ASSETS.”

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014#gagebacked securities decreased $59.9 million, or 7189%$696.2 million from $756.2 millic
at December 31, 2013. The decrease in mortpagked securities during the nine months endede8dq@r 30, 2014 was primarily due to the sa
$85.0 million in mortgagdacked securities at an average yield of 3.66%paat of the balance sheet deleveraging, and $7@libmin principal
repayments. These decreases were partially offsetubchases of $98.5 million in mortgajeeked securities at an average yield of 2.37%am
improvement of $4.8 million in the fair value of mgage-backed securities.

During the nine months ended September 30, 20hér securities increased $26.5 million, or 10.184288.2 million from $261.6 million at Decem
31, 2013. The increase in other securities dutiegnine months ended September 30, 2014 was plyndae to purchases of $33.5 million at an ave
yield of 2.05% and an improvement in the fair vaidi®@ther securities totaling $7.4 million, paryabffset by the sale of $10.2 million in other sdties
at an average yield of 2.07%, as part of the balaheet deleveraging, $1.9 million from the sal@mé nonperforming security and $1.0 million
maturities. Other securities primarily consist eturities issued by mutual or bond funds that iniegovernment and government agency secul
municipal bonds and corporate bonds.

Banking regulators issued the Volcker Rule in Delsen2013. The Volcker Rule, among other thingshiits banks from owning certain investm
securities. We have reviewed our investment paaffdr compliance with the Volcker Rule and in tbpinion of management we do not own
securities which are prohibited under the VolckateR
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Liabilities. Total liabilities were $4,439.6 million at Septemi3®, 2014, an increase of $150.6 million, or 3.5&m $4,289.0 million at December :
2013. During the nine months ended September 304,20lie to depositors increased $122.1 millior8.8%6, to $3,322.1 million, as a result of a $1
million increase in certificates of deposit paffiabffset by a $56.9 million decrease in core désoShe seasonal decrease in deposits from f
entities experienced during the second quarterOd#42continued during the third quarter. As a reswi obtained short term CDARS deposit
comparable rates to provide funding until the pulelintities’deposits return. We expect these deposits to rétuthe fourth quarter. Borrowed fur
increased $19.5 million during the nine months en8eptember 30, 2014. The decrease in core depoasitgiue to decreases of $158.9 million
$14.0 million in NOW and savings accounts, respetfi partially offset by increases of $100.1 noifliand $15.9 million in money market and den
accounts, respectively. The decrease in NOW acsaamd the increase in money market accounts rdfiectransfer of $85.9 million in balances fi
municipal NOW accounts to municipal money marketamts during the first nine months of 2014.

Equity. Total stockholderséquity increased $19.9 million, or 4.6%, to $45@&iflion at September 30, 2014 from $432.5 milliarDeecember 31, 201
Stockholdersequity increased primarily due to net income of .838illion for the nine months ended September2B04, an increase in comprehen
income of $6.9 million primarily due to an incredsethe fair value of the securities portfolio adtl.9 million due to the issuance of shares fron
annual funding of certain employee retirement plamsugh the release of common shares from the &repl Benefit Trust. These increases \
partially offset by the declaration and paymentofidends on the Compars/'common stock of $13.5 million and the purchasé6i,470 treasu
shares at a cost of $12.7 million. Book value menmon share was $15.26 at September 30, 2014 cethfia$14.36 at December 31, 2013.

On May 22, 2013, the Company announced the autit@izby the Board of Directors of a new commorektepurchase program, which authorize:
purchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of its commmeksDuring the nine months ended September 304,20& Company repurchased 661,470 shai
the Companys common stock at an average cost of $19.14 pee.shtiSeptember 30, 2014, 888,400 shares remde tepurchased under the cur
stock repurchase program. Stock will be purchasetbuthe current stock repurchase program from tortéme, in the open market or through pri
transactions subject to market conditions and atdikscretion of the management of the Company. & feno expiration or maximum dollar amc
under this authorization.

Cash flow. During the nine months ended September 30, 20héisfprovided by the Company's operating activiiemunted to $42.2 million. The
funds combined with $122.0 million provided fromdincing activities and $33.5 million availabletz beginning of the period were utilized to fund
investing activities of $167.2 million. The Comp&primary business objective is the originatior gmurchase of mulfiamily residential loan
commercial business loans and commercial realeestattgage loans and to a lesser extent one-tofémily (including mixeduse properties) and St
loans. During the nine months ended September @D4,2he net total of loan originations and purelsaless loan repayments and sales was $
million. During the nine months ended September2814, the Company also funded $132.2 million inchases of securities available for sale
repaid $157.1 million in longerm borrowed funds. During the nine months endept&nber 30, 2014, funds were provided by net asas of $130
million in total deposits and $25.0 million in skterm borrowed funds. Additionally, funds were pded by $180.0 million in proceeds fr
maturities, sales, calls and prepayments of séesirdtvailable for sale. The Company also used fuid&l3.5 million and $13.8 million for divide
payments and purchases of treasury stock, respgctouring the nine months ended September 304.201
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INTEREST RATE RISK

The Consolidated Statements of Financial Positerelbeen prepared in accordance with generallypted@ccounting principles in the United State
America, which require the measurement of finanp@dition and operating results in terms of his@rdollars without considering the changes in
value of certain investments due to changes irrésterates. Generally, the fair value of finandmlestments such as loans and securities fluct
inversely with changes in interest rates. As altesicreases in interest rates could result inrei@ges in the fair value of the Company’s inteeasting
assets which could adversely affect the Comparegsits of operations if such assets were soldnahe case of securities classified as availabte-f
sale, decreases in the Company’s stockholderstyedisuch securities were retained.

The Company manages the mix of interest-earningtsissd interedtearing liabilities on a continuous basis to mazxenieturn and adjust its expos
to interest rate risk. On a quarterly basis, mameye prepares the “Earnings and Economic Exposuhtinges in Interest Ratefport for review b
the Board of Directors, as summarized below. Thort quantifies the potential changes in net @geincome and net portfolio value should inte
rates go up or down (shocked) 200 basis pointsinsisg the yield curves of the rate shocks will lzgatiel to each other. The Compasiyegulator
currently place focus on the net portfolio valugusing on a rate shock up or down of 200 basistpoNet portfolio value is defined as the markadtie
of assets net of the market value of liabilitieeeTmarket value of assets and liabilities is deiteech using a discounted cash flow calculation. méi
portfolio value ratio is the ratio of the net poiib6 value to the market value of assets. All crem@ income and value are measured as perct
changes from the projected net interest incomeramgortfolio value at the base interest rate seéen@he base interest rate scenario assumes $t
rates at September 30, 2014. Various estimatesdiegaprepayment assumptions are made at each dévate shock. However, prepayment per
income is excluded from this analysis. Actual ressabuld differ significantly from these estimatés.September 30, 2014, the Company was withi
guidelines set forth by the Board of Directorsdach interest rate level.

The following table presents the Company'’s interatt shock as of September 30, 2014:

Projected Percentage Change

In

Net Interest  Net Portfolic  Net Portfolic
Change in Interest Ra Income Value Value Ratio
-200 Basis point -3.51% 12.01% 14.01%
-100 Basis point 0.1C 8.3¢ 13.8(
Base interest ral 0.0C 0.0C 13.07
+100 Basis point -5.8: -12.92 11.7¢
+200 Basis point -11.9z -27.3i 10.1¢
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AVERAGE BALANCES

Net interest income represents the difference bEwecome on intere-earning assets and expense on intdveating liabilities. Net interest incol
depends upon the relative amount of interest-egragsets and interesearing liabilities and the interest rate earnegaid on them. The following tal
sets forth certain information relating to the Ca@mys Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditicth @onsolidated Statements of Income foi
three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013g#adts the average yield on assets and avemsgjeot liabilities for the periods indicated. S
yields and costs are derived by dividing incomexpense by the average balance of assets ortiedilrespectively, for the periods shown. Ave
balances are derived from average daily balandesyields include amortizations of fees which amasidered adjustments to yields.

For the three months ended Septembe

2014 2013
Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest  Cost Balance Interest  Cost
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Mortgage loans, net (: $ 3,101,68. $ 38,44( 49¢% $ 2,948,641 $ 39,35¢ 5.3%%
Other loans, net (: 464,67¢ 4,22¢ 3.64 338,31! 3,18 3.7€
Total loans, ne 3,566,35! 42,66¢ 4.7¢ 3,286,95! 42,54( 5.1¢
Mortgagw-backed securitie 727,93! 4,761 2.62 787,68( 5,73: 2.91
Other securitie 286,78¢ 1,73¢ 2.4z 265,75 1,56¢ 2.3€
Total securitie 1,014,72. 6,49¢ 2.5€ 1,053,43. 7,29¢ 2.71
Interes-earning deposits ar
federal funds sol 25,95¢ 10 0.1f 30,90¢ 13 0.17
Total interes-earning asse! 4,607,031 49,17 4.27 4,371,29. 49,85! 4.5€
Other asset 252,68: 250,74!
Total assel $ 4,859,71 $ 4,622,03!
Liabilities and Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities
Deposits
Savings accoun $ 253,62: 127 0.1¢ $ 270,95¢ 12¢ 0.1¢
NOW account 1,329,32! 1,464 0.44 1,298,24. 1,67 0.52
Money market accoun 279,52¢ 20€ 0.3C 190,26: 70 0.1t
Certificate of deposit accour 1,258,69! 5,492 1.7 1,191,57. 5,89¢ 1.9¢
Total due to deposito 3,121,17! 7,28 0.9 2,951,03. 7,761 1.0t
Mortgagors' escrow accout 41,51( 49 0.47 40,59¢ 9 0.0¢
Total deposit 3,162,68! 7,33¢ 0.9z 2,991,63I 7,77¢ 1.04
Borrowed fund: 987,38( 9,884 4.0C 989,79: 5,09( 2.0€
Total intere-bearing liabilities 4,150,06! 17,22( 1.6€ 3,981,422 12,86¢ 1.2¢
Non interes-bearing deposit 213,71! 175,21°
Other liabilities 41,35 44,27
Total liabilities 4,405,13 4,200,911
Equity 454,58( 421,12¢
Total liabilities and equit $ 4,859,71 $ 4,622,03
Net interest income
net interest rate spre $ 31,95; 2.61 $ 36,980 3.21%
Net interes-earning assets
net interest margi $ 456,97 2.71% $ 389,87( 3.3¢0,
Ratio of intere«-earning assets
interes-bearing liabilities L1l _11Cx

(1) Loan interest income includes loan fee income (Wincludes net amortization of deferred fees arsds;date charges, and prepayment penaltie
approximately $1.3 million and $0.9 million for thieree months ended September 30, 2014 and 2G:atively.
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The following table sets forth certain informatiaiating to the Compang’Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiath @onsolidated Stateme
of Income for the nine months ended September @04 2nd 2013, and reflects the average yield ostsissid average cost of liabilities for the per
indicated. Such yields and costs are derived bididig income or expense by the average balances#ts or liabilities, respectively, for the peri
shown. Average balances are derived from averaifjetidances. The yields include amortization agfdavhich are considered adjustments to yields.

For the nine months ended Septembel

2014 2013
Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Mortgage loans, net (: $ 3,044,350 $ 115,35 50 $ 2,904,86: $ 118,92: 5.4€%
Other loans, net (Z 437,49: 11,92¢ 3.6° 316,53( 9,42( 3.97
Total loans, ne 3,481,84. 127,27 4.87 3,221,39: 128,34: 5.31
Mortgag«-backed securitie 755,62( 15,47: 2.7% 763,91¢ 17,32 3.0z
Other securitie 280,07! 5,154 2.4¢ 243,47 4,51¢ 2.47
Total securitie 1,035,69! 20,62¢ 2.6€ 1,007,39! 21,83% 2.8¢
Interes-earning deposits ar
federal funds sol 40,115 55 0.1¢ 39,66¢ 54 0.1¢
Total interes-earning asse! 4,557,65! 147,95 4,38 4,268,45: 150,23: 4.6¢
Other asset 252,92: 260,91:
Total assel $ 4,810,571 $ 4,529,36!
Liabilities and Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities
Deposits
Savings accoun $ 258,62: 35¢ 0.1¢€ $ 277,45: 38¢ 0.1¢
NOW account 1,419,46. 4,748 0.4t 1,273,90! 5,04 0.5¢
Money market accoun 231,42¢ 441 0.2t 172,86¢ 197 0.1t
Certificate of deposit accour 1,174,36! 17,08¢ 1.94 1,187,40. 18,50« 2.0¢
Total due to deposito 3,083,87! 22,63( 0.9¢ 2,911,63 24,13¢ 1.11
Mortgagors' escrow accout 47,33¢ 94 0.2¢€ 46,17 26 0.0¢
Total deposit 3,131,20: 22,72¢ 0.97 2,957,80: 24,16( 1.0¢
Borrowed fund: 989,48 19,96( 2.6¢ 933,31¢ 17,64¢ 2.52
Total intere-bearing liabilities 4,120,691 42,68¢ 1.3¢ 3,891,12i 41,80¢ 1.4z
Non interes-bearing deposit 202,15¢ 162,73:
Other liabilities 38,63: 42,02¢
Total liabilities 4,361,48: 4,095,87!
Equity 449,09° 433,48"
Total liabilities and equit $ 4,810,57 $ 4,529,36!
Net interest income
net interest rate spre $ 105,27 2.9% $ 10842 3.2€9%
Net interes-earning assets
net interest margi $ 436,96t 3.08 $ 377,33¢ 3.3%
Ratio of intere«-earning assets
interes-bearing liabilities 111k 1A

(1) Loan interest income includes loan fee incomiei¢h includes net amortization of deferred feed emsts, late charges, and prepayment
penalties) of approximately $3.5 million and $2.iflion for the nine months ended September 30, 281l 2013, respectivel
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The following table sets forth the Company’s loaigimations (including the net effect of refinang)nand the changes in the Companpbrtfolio o
loans, including purchases, sales and principalagahs for the periods indicated.

For the nine months ended

September 3(
(In thousands 2014 2013
Mortgage Loans
At beginning of perioc $3,028,45 $2,906,88
Mortgage loans originate:
Multi-family residentia 244 76: 302,52
Commercial real esta 90,49¢ 52,32¢
Oneto-four family — mixec-use propert 32,36¢ 22,45
Oneto-four family — residentia 20,93( 20,87¢
Cc-operative apartmen - 4,79¢
Construction 1,401 1,951
Total mortgage loans originated 389,95! 404,93:
Mortgage loans purchase
Commercial real estate 10,00( 452
Total mortgage loans purchased 10,00( 452
Less:
Principal and other reductio 266,79 291,31(
Sales 5,94: 13,46(
At end of period $3,155,67 $3,007,49
Commercial Business and Other Loan
At beginning of perioc $394,55I $314,49.
Other loans originatec
Small Business Administratic 1,07 47C
Commercial busines 219,82( 225,33
Taxi medallior 654 -
Other 2,06( 4,02¢
Total other loans originated 223,61: 229,83!
Other loans purchase
Taxi medallion 13,77 -
Total other loans purchased 13,77 =
Less:
Principal and other reductio 152,81¢ 167,16¢
At end of period $479,12! $377,16!
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TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCUTURED (“TDR”) AND NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

Management continues to adhere to the Bank’s ceatee underwriting standards. The majority of Benk's nonperforming loans are collateraliz
by residential income producing properties that @eupied, thereby retaining more of their value aaducing the potential loss. The Bank tak
proactive approach to managing delinquent loarcdudting conducting site examinations and encouaiorrowers to meet with a Bank represente
The Bank has been developing shertn payment plans that enable certain borrowebsitg their loans current. The Bank reviews itBrapiencies o
a loan by loan basis and continually explores wayelp borrowers meet their obligations and rethem back to current status. At times, the Bani
restructure a loan to enable a borrower to contina&ing payments when it is deemed to be in thélbag-term interest of the Bank. This restruc
may include making concessions to the borrower tthetBank would not make in the normal course dfifess, such as reducing the interest rate
the next reset date, extending the amortizatioingehereby lowering the monthly payments, or cliagghe loarto interest only payments for a limi
time period. At times, certain problem loans haeerbrestructured by combining more than one ofetloggions. The Bank believes that restructt
these loans in this manner will allow certain bareos to become and remain current on their loahs.Bank classifies these loans as TDR. Loans v
have been current for six consecutive months atithe they are restructured as TDR remain on atstatus. Loans which were delinquent at the
they are restructured as a TDR are placed onacorsal status until they have made timely paymémtssix consecutive months. Loans that
restructured as TDR but are not performing in agaoce with the restructured terms are excluded ff@nTDR table below, as they are placed on non
accrual status and reported as non-performing loans

The following table shows loans classified as Th& tare performing according to their restructuezchs at the periods indicated:

September 3 June 30, December 3:

(In thousands 2014 2014 2013
Accrual Status:
Multi-family residentia $3,04¢ $3,06: $3,081
Commercial real esta 2,38( 2,38¢ 2,407
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 2,391 2,022 2,297
One-to-four family - residentia 357 35¢ 364
Constructior - - 447
Commercial business and other 2,28¢ 2,32¢ 4,40¢
Total 10,46¢ 10,16( 13,00t
Non-accrual status:
One-to-four family - mixed-use property - 38C 38¢
Total - 38C 38<
Total performing troubled debt restructured $10,46¢  $10,54( $13,38t¢

During the nine months ended September 30, 20tde thDR loans totaling $2.7 million were transfdrte nonperforming status, which resultec
these loans being included in non-performing lodmg of these loans were paid subsequent to beamgfierred to noperforming loans and prior to t
end of the second quarter of 2014. Additionallyrimty the three months ended September 30, 2014)oamefor $0.4 million was transferred fri
performing non-accrual status to performing accstaus as it has made timely payments for sixeauts/e months.

Interest income on loans is recognized on the atdrasis. The accrual of income on loans is disnoatl when certain factors, such as contra
delinquency of 90 days or more, indicate reasondblébt as to the timely collectability of such inve. Additionally, uncollected interest previot
recognized on non-accrual loans is reversed fraarést income at the time the loan is placed onatmnual statud.oans in default 90 days or more
to their maturity date but not their payments, oure to accrue interest as long as the borrowetiraaes to remit monthly payments.
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The following table shows non-performing assetsluding Loans held for sale, at the periods in@idat

September June 30, December
(In thousands 30, 2014 2014 31, 2013
Loans 90 days or more past du
and still accruing:

Multi-family residentia $97 $987 $52
Commercial real esta 264 26€ -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 421 1,30 -
One-to-four family - residentia 14 14 15
Commercial business and other 351 41C 53¢
Total 1,147 2,98( 60€
Non-accrual loans:
Multi-family residentia 7,281 10,86: 13,68:
Commercial real esta 5,972 9,761 9,96:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 9,08: 8,71: 9,06:
One-to-four family - residentia 11,02: 11,34¢ 13,25(
Co-operative apartmen - - 57
Commercial business and other 1,15¢ 2,13(C 2,34¢
Total 34,51¢ 42,81 48,36:
Total non-performing loans 35,66¢ 45,79 48,96¢
Other non-performing assets:
Real estate acquired through foreclos 5,79z 1,34¢ 2,98t
Investment securities - - 1,871
Total 5,792 1,34¢€ 4,85¢
Total non-performing assets $41,45¢ $47,13° $53,82-

Included in loans over 90 days past due and stilfiaing were nine loans totaling $1.1 million, bahs totaling $3.0 million, and six loans totali@€
million at September 30, 2014, June 30, 2014 anceBer 31, 2013, respectively. These loans angasll their respective maturity dates and are
remitting payments. The Bank is actively workinghwihese borrowers to extend the maturity of oayethese loans.

Included in norperforming loans were two loans totaling $2.4 roilliwhich were restructured as TDR and not perfognimaccordance with the
restructured terms at September 30, 2014 and Jur2z034, compared to one loan totaling $2.3 milkwecember 31, 2013.

The Bank’s norperforming assets totaled $41.5 million at Septen3fe 2014, a decrease of $5.7 million from $47illion at June 30, 2014, anc
decrease of $12.4 million from $53.8 million at Betber 31, 2013. Total ngrerforming assets as a percentage of total asssesMB5% at Septeml
30, 2014, 0.97% at June 30, 2014 and 1.14% at De=eB1, 2013. The ratio of allowance for loan Igsgetotal norperforming loans was 79.5%
September 30, 2014, 63.8% at June 30, 2014, aB8&cdt December 31, 2013.

During the three months ended September 30, 2@Liahs totaling $5.7 million were added to ramerual loans, nine loans totaling $1.9 million &
returned to performing status, 17 loans totaling $6illion were paid in full, three loans totali$g.9 million was transferred to other real estateed
and two loans totaling $0.1 million were chargeti-of

At December 31, 2013, naaccrual investment securities included one poalest ppreferred security with a carrying amount dfSmillion for whict
we were not receiving payments. During the nine tm®ended September 30, 2014, the Company soldrtaenonaccrual trust preferred security
total proceeds of $2.1 million.
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The following table shows our delinquent loans tir&t less than 90 days past due still accruingdsteand considered performing at the periods
indicated:

September 30, 201 December 31, 201

60- 89 day: 30- 59 day: 60- 89 day: 30- 59 day:
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $2,72¢ $11,09: $2,55¢ $14,10:
Commercial real esta 93¢ 7,97¢ 52¢ 5,02¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 2,83t 13,73: 1,09¢ 14,017

One-to-four family - residentia 1,36( 3,081 517 3,927
Cc-operative apartmen - -

Construction loan - - - -
Small Business Administratic - 96 - 105

Taxi medallion - - - -
Commercial business and other 91 4 2 187
Total delinquent loans $7,95( $35,98! $4,69¢ $37,36'

CRITICIZED AND CLASSIFIED ASSETS

Our policy is to review our assets, focusing prifigaon the loan portfolio, OREO and the investmeottfolios, to ensure that the credit qualit
maintained at the highest levels. When weaknessesdantified, immediate action is taken to corréed@ problem through direct contact with
borrower or issuer. We then monitor these asset, ia accordance with our policy and current raguly guidelines, we designate them &pécia
Mention,” which is considered a “Criticized Asseshd “Substandard,” “Doubtful,” or “Loss” which awm®nsidered “Classified Assetsas deeme
necessary. These asset designations are updategriyualWe designate an asset as Substandard wheellalefined weakness is identified t
jeopardizes the orderly liquidation of the debt. Wé&signate an asset as Doubtful when it displagsrtherent weakness of a Substandard asset w
added provision that collection of the debt in falh the basis of existing facts, is highly improlea We designate an asset as Loss if it is deahs
debtor is incapable of repayment. We do not holdlaans designated as loss, as loans that arendésijas Loss are charged to the Allowance for
Losses. Assets that are nacerual are designated as Substandard or Doubtieldesignate an asset as Special Mention if thet as®s not warra
designation within one of the other categories, dngs contain a potential weakness that desereserchttention. Our total Criticized and Classi
assets were $95.4 million at September 30, 20tléceease of $34.7 million from $130.2 million atde@mber 31, 2013.

-62-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the Bank’s assetsigleated as Criticized and Classified at SepterBbe014:

(In thousands Special Mentio Substandal Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:

Multi-family residentia $7,99¢ $10,59: $1,15( $- $19,74:
Commercial real esta 9,28¢ 10,14¢ - - 19,43
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 6,32¢ 13,88: - - 20,20¢

One-to-four family - residentia 2,741 12,75¢ - - 15,49¢
Cc-operative apartmen - -

Construction loan - -
Small Business Administratic 294 - - - 294

Commercial business and other 154 4,99/ 50 - 5,19¢
Total loans 26,80 52,37: 1,20( - 80,37

Investment Securities:®

Pooled trust preferred securities - 9,26: - - 9,26:
Total investment securities - 9,26: - - 9,26:

Other Real Estate Owned - 5,79: - - 5,79z
Total $26,80: $67,42° $1,20( $ $95,42¢

The following table sets forth the Bank’s assetsigieated as Criticized and Classified at Decembef313:

(In thousands Special Mentio Substandal Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $9,94( $19,08t¢ $- $ $29,02¢
Commercial real esta 13,50: 16,82( - - 30,32
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7,99: 14,89¢ - - 22,89(
One-to-four family - residentia 2,84¢ 14,02¢ - - 16,87«
Cc-operative apartmen - 59 - - 59
Construction loan 74¢€ - - - 74¢€
Small Business Administratic 31C - - - 31C
Commercial business and other 7,31¢ 8,45( 50 - 15,81
Total loans 42 65! 73,34 50 - 116,04!
Investment Securities:(1)
Pooled trust preferred securities - 11,13¢ - - 11,13/
Total investment securities - 11,13« - - 11,13/
Other Real Estate Owned - 2,98t - - 2,98¢
Total $42,65: $87,46. $5C $  $130,16¢

(1) Our investment securities are classified asurstes available for sale and as such are camietheir fair value in our Consolidated Finan
Statements. The securities above had a fair vl&6.6 million and $7.9 million at September 30,120and December 31, 2013, respectively. U
current applicable regulatory guidelines, we arpiieed to disclose the classified investment séiestias shown in the tables above, at their badkes
(amortized cost, or fair value for securities theg under the fair value option). Additionally, tteguirement is only for the Barsksecurities. Flushit
Financial Corporation did not have any securitiessified or criticized at September 30, 2014 aeddnber 31, 2013.

On a quarterly basis all collateral dependent ldhatare classified as Substandard or Doubtfuirdesnally reviewed for impairment, based on upd
cash flows for income producing properties, or updandependent appraisals. The loan balancesllatexal dependent loans reviewed for impairr
are then compared to the loans updated fair vélleeconsider fair value of collateral dependent foembe 85% of the appraised or internally estia
value of the property. The balance which exceettsvédue is generally chargeaff against the allowance for loan losses. At Seybier 30, 2014, tt
current loan-to-value ratio on our collateral degemt loans reviewed for impairment was 50.3%.
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We classify investment securities as Substandaehwbased on an internal review, we concluded ¢lcergies are below investment grade. We
designated a total of two investment securitie$ #na held at the Bank as Substandard at SepteBibe&t014. Our classified investment securitie
September 30, 2014 held by the Bank include twaoeissof pooled trust preferred securities. The lmmest Securities which are classified
Substandard at September 30, 2014 are securitsgswere rated investment grade when we purchasech.tfhese securities have each |
subsequently downgraded by at least one ratingcggenbelow investment grade. We test each of tiseserities quarterly for impairment, througt
independent third party.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

We have established and maintain on our bookslawahce for loan losses that is designed to prosideserve against estimated losses inherent
overall loan portfolio. The allowance is establidhttrough a provision for loan losses based on gemants evaluation of the risk inherent in
various components of the loan portfolio and otfamtors, including historical loan loss experierfeghich is updated quarterly), current econc
conditions, delinquency and non-accrual trendssified loan levels, risk in the portfolio and vlas and trends in loan types, recent trends ingehar
offs, changes in underwriting standards, experigabgity and depth of our lenders, collection pis and experience, internal loan review functot
other external factors. Additionally, we segregatenl loans into two portfolios based on year ofyiration. One portfolio was reviewed for lo.
originated after December 31, 2009 and a secontfiofiorfor loans originated prior to January 1, BODur decision to segregate the portfolio b
upon origination dates was based on changes maderionderwriting standards during 2009. By the eh@009, all loans were being underwril
based on revised and tightened underwriting staisd&moans originated prior to 2010 have a highéingeency rate and loss history. Each of the y
in the portfolio for loans originated prior to 20b@ve a similar delinquency rate. The determinatibthe amount of the allowance for loan lo:
includes estimates that are susceptible to sigmifichanges due to changes in appraisal valuesllateral, national and local economic conditions
other factors. We review our loan portfolio by sepe categories with similar risk and collaterahwcteristics. Impaired loans are segregatec
reviewed separately. All noaecrual loans are classified as impaired. Impdivads secured by collateral are reviewed basederair value of the
collateral. For norcollateralized impaired loans, management estimates recoveries that are anticipated for each Iéanconnection with tr
determination of the allowance, the market valuealfateral is generally evaluated by our staffrafger. On a quarterly basis, the estimated vadt
impaired collateral dependent loans are internedljiewed, based on updated cash flows for inconoelyming properties, and at times an upd
independent appraisal is obtained. The loan batanteollateral dependent impaired loans are tlenpared to the property’'updated fair value. V
consider fair value of collateral dependent loanbe 85% of the appraised or internally estimaisder of the property. The balance which exceed
value is generally chargeaff. When evaluating a loan for impairment, we dda rely on guarantees, and the amount of impairpieany, is based ¢
the fair value of the collateral. We do not campns at a value in excess of the fair value due gmarantee from the borrower. Impaired colla
dependent loans that were written down resultech fqoarterly reviews or updated appraisals thatcated the propertiegstimated value had declir
from when the loan was originated. The Board oEbBiors reviews and approves the adequacy of tbeatice for loan losses on a quarterly basis.

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance for losses, we review our loan portfolio by separattegories which have similar risk and collat
characteristics, e.g., multi-family residentialymoercial real estate, one-to-four family mixed-pseperty, one-to-four family residential, operative
apartment, construction, SBA, commercial busingss, medallion and consumer loans. General pronsiare established against performing loa
our portfolio in amounts deemed prudent based omuoalitative analysis of the factors, including thistorical loss experience, delinquency trendi
local economic conditions. We experienced totalamatrgeeffs of $0.3 million during the three months en@=ptember 30, 2014, compared to tota
charge-offs of $5.0 million during the three mont#rsded September 30, 2013. Nwmerforming loans totaled $35.7 million and $61.2lion at
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The 'Bamiderwriting standards generally require a ltawalue ratio of no more than 75% at the time
loan is originated. At September 30, 2014, the ayerloan-to-value ratio for our ngerforming loans collateralized by real estate Was3%. £
(benefit) provision for loan losses of ($0.6 mitijoand $3.5 million was recorded for the three mergnded September 30, 2014 and 2013, respec
Management has concluded, and the Board of Diret¢tas concurred, that at September 30, 2014, litngaadce for loan losses was sufficient to ab
losses inherent in our loan portfolio.
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The following table sets forth the activity in ti@mpany's allowance for loan losses for the periodgated:

For the nine months ended Septembe

(Dollars in thousands 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of peric $31,77¢ $31,10:
Provision (benefit) for loan loss: (2,829 12,93t
Loans charge-off:
Multi-family residentia (1,086 (3,459
Commercial real esta (307, (905;
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert (305; (3,780
One-to-four family — residentia 97) (695;
Cc-operative apartmen - (74)
Constructior - (2,678
Small Business Administratic (49) (426,
Commercial business and other (130 (2,057
Total loans charged-off (1,974 (14,074
Recoveries
Multi-family residentia 144 15E
Commercial real esta 481 29z
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 331 16¢
Oneto-four family — residentia 26¢ 117
Cc-operative apartmen 7 4
Small Business Administratic 7€ 77
Commercial business and other 63 36
Total recoveries 1,371 851
Net charg-offs (603 (13,223
Balance at end of period $28,34« $30,81¢
Ratio of net char¢-offs during the period t
average loans outstanding during the pe 0.02% 0.55%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross lodrend of perioc 0.78% 0.91%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to -performing
assets at end of peri 68.37% 44.99Y
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to performing
loans at end of peric 79.47% 50.39%
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Basel Il

In the summer of 2012, our primary federal reguapublished two Notices of Proposed Rulemaking?qRs”)that would have substantially revised
risk-based capital requirements applicable to bank hgldompanies and depository institutions, includimg Company and the Bank, compared t
then current U.S. riskased capital rules, which are based on the irtierra capital accords of the Basel Committee onk®ay Supervision, which a
generally referred to as “Basel I.”

During July 2013, our primary federal regulatorsuisd revised NPRs that will revise and replaceatfencies' current capital ruléhe NPRs incluc
numerous revisions to the existing capital regafegj including, but not limited to, the following:

e Revises the definition of regulatory capital com@uois and related calculations.

e Adds a new common equity tier 1 capital ratio.

e Increases the minimum tier 1 capital ratio requigatrfrom four percent to six percent.

e Incorporates the revised regulatory capital regquésts into the Prompt Corrective Action framework.

e Implements a new capital conservation buffer thatil limit payment of capital distributions and tzén discretionary bonus payments
executive officers and key risk takers if the bagkbrganization does not hold certain amounts ofrnon equity tier 1 capital in addition
those needed to meet its minimum risk-based cajgitplirements.

e Provides a transition period for several aspecth®fproposed rule: the new minimum capital ragiQuirements, the capital conservation bu
and the regulatory capital adjustments and dedustio

e Increases capital requirements for past-due Id&gh,volatility commercial real estate exposures] eertain short-term loan commitments.
e Removes references to credit ratings consistemt 8gction 939A of the Dodd-Frank Act.

e Establishes due diligence requirements for seeatitin exposures.

The capital regulations would be effective Janugr015 for bank holding companies and banks véss than $15 billion in total assets, such a:
Company and Bank. Based on our preliminary assegsofi¢he NPRs, we believe we will see an incréasmur total riskweighted assets. However,
Company and the Bank, based on our preliminarysassent, would meet the requirements of the NPRswélhdontinue to be considered well-
capitalized.

Volcker Rule

On December 10, 2013, our primary federal regutatmiopted Section 619 of the Dodd-Frank Act, comynmferred to as the “Volcker Rulewhich
prohibits insured depository institutions from egigg in shortterm proprietary trading of certain securities,idg#ives and other financial instrume
for the firm’s own account, subject to certain ex¢ions, including market making and rigkitigating hedging. The Volcker Rule also imposestk or
banking entities’ investments in, and other relatdips with, hedge funds and private equity funds.

The rule as adopted prohibited banking entitiesnfrawning collateralized debt obligations backedmanily by trust preferred securitiesT¢UP<
CDOs") after July 21, 2015. At September 30, 2014, the oy held TruPs CDOs with an amortized cost andetaralue totaling $9.3 million a
$6.5 million, respectively.
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On January 14, 2014, our primary federal regulasggroved an interim final rule to permit bankingites to retain interests in certain TruPS ClI
from the investment prohibitions of Section 613he Dodd-Frank Act.

Under the interim final rule, the agencies perr# tetention of an interest in or sponsorship ofeced funds by banking entities if the follow
qualifications are met:

e the TruPS CDO was established, and the interestasaed, before May 19, 2010;

e the banking entity reasonably believes that therof§ proceeds received by the TruPS CDO were tadeprimarily in Qualifying TruP
Collateral; and

e the banking entity's interest in the TruPS CDO aepuired on or before December 10, 2013
The interim final rule defines Qualifying TruPS Gaéral as any trust preferred security or suba@tdia debt instrument that was:

e issued prior to May 19, 2010, by a depository togtin holding company that as of the end of ampporéng period within 12 months immediat
preceding the issuance of such trust preferredrisgaun subordinated debt instrument had total ofidated assets of less than $15 billion; or

e issued prior to May 19, 2010, by a mutual holdioghpany.

As a result of the interim final rule, the Compailstermined that the TruPS CDOs it owns at Septe®®e2014 are not prohibited by the Volcker Rule.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATIOMTION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For a discussion of the qualitative and quantitatiisclosures about market risk, see the informatioder the caption "Management's Discussior
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of CGyiiems - Interest Rate Risk."”

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company carried out, under the supervisionsitid the participation of the Comparsymanagement, including its Chief Executive Offiearx
Chief Financial Officer, an evaluation of the etfeeness of the design and operation of the Comgadigclosure controls and procedures (as defir
Rule 13a15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)fdake end of the period covered by this Quart®&gport. Based upon that evaluation,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeoncluded that, as of September 30, 2014, theyaesid operation of these disclosure controls
procedures were effective. During the period coddrg this Quarterly Report, there have been no ghsiin the Compang’internal control owvt
financial reporting that have materially affectedare reasonably likely to materially affect, bempany’s internal control over financial reporting
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATIOMTION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits. ade@ment of the Company, after consultation wittsidet legal counsel, believes that the resol
of these various matters will not result in any enall adverse effect on the Company's consolidétethcial condition, results of operations and «

flows.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from the aitors disclosed in the Company’s Annual Repofferm 10-K for the year ended December 31,

2013.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth information regamlithe shares of common stock repurchased by thep&aynduring the three months ended Septe

30, 2014:

Total Maximum
Number of Number of
Shares Shares That
Purchased May
as Part of Yet Be
Total Average Publicly Purchased
Number Price Announced Under the
of Shares Paid per Plans Plans
Period Purchase! Share or Program:  or Program:
July 1 to July 31, 201 - % = - 441,75(
August 1 to August 31, 201 372,55( 18.91 372,55( 69,20(
September 1 to September 30, 2014 180,80( 19.1¢ 180,80( 888,40(
Total 553,35( $ 19.01 553,35(

During the three months ended September 30, 28&4C06mpany completed the common stock repurchagggm that was approved by the Company’
Board of Directors on May 22, 2013. On August 142 the Company announced the authorization byBted of Directors of a new common st
repurchase program, which authorizes the purchfigp to 1,000,000 shares of its common stock. Dutive three months ended September 30, |
the Company repurchased 553,350 shares of the Gofigpeommon stock at an average cost of $19.01 pee.shtSeptember 30, 2014, 888,400 st
remain to be repurchased under the current stqukckase program. Stock will be purchased undectinent stock repurchase program from tin
time, in the open market or through private tratisas subject to market conditions and at the dtsmn of the management of the Company. There
expiration or maximum dollar amount under this auttation.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financiadrporation (1,

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation

3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgrating Preferred Stock of Flushing Financial @anation (4)

3.5 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated ag$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FinghFinancial Corporation (2

3.6 Amended and Restated -Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation as of Augtisf014 (filed herewith
Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@@eke Flushing Financial Corporation and Compunesirust Company N.A.,
as Rights Agent, which includes the form of Cettife of Increase of Shares Designated as Seriasiérarticipating Preferred

4.1 Stock as Exhibit A, form of Right Certificate asHibit B and the Summary of Rights to Purchase PrefeStock as Exhibit C (¢
Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingaietong-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ¢ecept of Flushing Financial
Corporation’'s total assets; therefore, copies n$titwent instruments defining the rights of thédeos of such debt are not included
as exhibits. Copies of instruments with respestich long-term debt will be furnished to the Sa@siand Exchange Commission

4.2 upon reques

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeilétl herewith)

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeilét herewith)
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief

32.1 Executive Officer (furnished herewit
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief

32.2 Financial Officer (furnished herewit|

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed ttte)

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuiniled herewith)

101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunhéiiled herewith)

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documengfiherewith)

101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doennffiled herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwihe Registration Statement on For-1 filed
September 1, 1995, Registration No-96488.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwktorm &K filed September 26, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwktorm $-8 filed May 31, 2002

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm 1(-Q for the quarter ende
September 30, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wibrm (K filed September 11, 200

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wikbrm 1(-K filed December 31, 201.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgb Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causé réport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Flushing Financial Corporation,

Dated:_November 7, 2014 By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Bural
President and Chief Executive Offic

Dated:_November 7, 2014 By: /s/David Fry
David Fry

Senior Executive Vice President, Treasurer
Chief Financial Office
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financ{abrporation (1
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation
3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation
3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgrating Preferred Stock of Flushing Financial @anation (4)
3.5 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated ag$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FinghFinancial Corporation (2
3.6 Amended and Restated -Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation as of Augts2014 (filed herewith
Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@@eke Flushing Financial Corporation and Compunesirust Company N.A.,
as Rights Agent, which includes the form of Cettife of Increase of Shares Designated as Seriasiérarticipating Preferred
4.1 Stock as Exhibit A, form of Right Certificate asHibit B and the Summary of Rights to Purchase PrefeStock as Exhibit C (¢
Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingadetong-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ¢éecept of Flushing Financial
Corporation’'s total assets; therefore, copies n$titwent instruments defining the rights of thédeos of such debt are not included
as exhibits. Copies of instruments with respestich long-term debt will be furnished to the Sa@siand Exchange Commission
4.2 upon reques
31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeil¢tl herewith)
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢tl herewith)
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief
32.1 Executive Officer (furnished herewit
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief
32.2 Financial Officer (furnished herewit|
101.INS XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed ttte)
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuin@iled herewith)
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunhéiiled herewith)
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documerie(fiherewith)
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenttfiled herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwihe Registration Statement on For-1 filed
September 1, 1995, Registration No-96488.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm &K filed September 26, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwktorm £-8 filed May 31, 2002

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm 1(-Q for the quarter ende
September 30, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wibrm (K filed September 11, 200

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm 1(-K filed December 31, 201
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John R. Buran, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormraQ0f Flushing Financial Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notator@ny untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances unwtiech such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and ctigWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
() for the registrant and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financiglorging, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rigggttte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for extel
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiaisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proceg] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig’'s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’'s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyal
affect, the registrant’s internal control over ficéal reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committethe registrant’s board of directors (or persoedgrming the equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date:_November 7, 2014 By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Bural
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David Fry, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormraQ0f Flushing Financial Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notator@ny untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances unwtiech such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and ctigWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
() for the registrant and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financiglorging, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rigggttte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for extel
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiaisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proceg] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig’'s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’'s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyal
affect, the registrant’s internal control over ficéal reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committethe registrant’s board of directors (or persoedgrming the equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date:November 7, 201

By: /s/David Fry
David Fry

Senior Executive Vice President, Treasurer andfGhmancial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of FlushiFigancial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Fol®-Q for the period ended September 30,
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, JohrBRran, Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti@b0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theafas-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my

knowledge:
(1) the Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran

Chief Executive Officer
November 7, 2014



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of FlushiFigancial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Fol®-Q for the period ended September 30,
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, DawFig, Chief Financial Officer of the
Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti@b0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theafas-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my
knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphlgsents, in all material respects, the finanaalition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

By: /s/David Fry
David Fry

Chief Financial Officer
November 7, 2014



